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VISION STATEMENT

To transform the company into a modern and dynamic paper

converting company by utilizing experience of the team of
professionals to play a meaningful role on sustainable basis

in the economy of Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality products to customers and explore new
clients to promote sales of the company through good
governance and encourage a sound and dynamic team, so as
to achieve best prices of products of the company for sustainable
growth and prosperity of the company.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 63rd Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held
on Thursday, October 09, 2025, at 10:30 am. at the Registered Office of the Company at /58, Estate

Avenue, 51T E Earachi, and also through video-conferencing, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toconfirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 24™ October, 2024,

2. To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Avcounts of the Company for the vear ended June 30, 2025,
together with the Chairman Reviews, Directors” and Auditors’ Reports thereon.
I accordance with section 223 of the Companies Act, 2007 and purswant to the SR.0 389/(1)/2023 dated
Mareh 21, 2023, the financial sratements of the Company can be accessed through the following weblink

and QR enabled code: s
(=] 2 s [m]

hittps: //pakpaper.com/AnnualReports/ PPPLAnnual Report2025, pdf El

3. To consider and approve the payment of the Final cash dividend, for the year ended June 30, 2025 @ 50%
Le Be.5.00/- (per ordinary share of Rs. 10 each) for the Anancial vear ended June 30,2025, as recommended
by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the vear 2025-26 and to fix their remuneration. The present Auditors-
M /s, Farug All being eligible offered themselves for reappolntment.

OTHER BUSINESS

5. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

By Order of the Board
Karachi DAWOOD AHMED MAPARA
Dated: September 16", 2025, Company Secretary

e e T

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, Oetober 07, 2025, to Thursday,
October 0%, 2025 (both davs inclusive), Transfers received ar the office of our Share Registrar, M/s, F.I), Registrar
Services (Pvt) Ltd, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-4, L1 Chandigarh Road, Kerachi 74000, at the cloge of business
on Monday, October 06, 2025, will be treated in time for the above entitlement.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak, and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member ag
his/her proxy to attend, speak. and vore in his / her instead. The proxies o be effective must be in writing and
must he received by the Company's Regiatered Office not less than 48 hours before the meeting,

3. For Attending the Meeting:

i. Inthe case of individuals, the account holder or sub-aceount holder and/or the person whose securities are
Ina group account and whose registration detalls are uploaded as per Regulations shall authenticate his/her
identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity card (CNIC) or original Passport at the
time of attending the meeting,

ii. Members registered with CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, LD, numbers, and aceount
nimbers in CDS.

fil. In the ease of the corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resclution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nomines shall be produced {unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting,
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4. For Appointing Proxies:

i Inthe caze of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and S or the person whose secarities are
in a group account and whose registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations shall submit the
prr.-x:.r fﬂl‘]‘l.‘l AL E‘.II.-‘I' |hi-' above I'I."l] (4] i!T'HH'.Ii—"I'I.t.

ii. The proxy form shall be wimessed by two persons whose names, addresses, and CNIC Numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

i, Arttested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the prosy
form.
iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CHIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting

V. In the case of the corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with a proxy form to the Company.

5. Zakat Declaration Certificate
Members wha desire to stop the deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submir a declaration on non-
judicial stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted earlier),

6.5ubmission of CNIC Copy (MANDATORY)

Under the directives of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, a CHIC number is mandatory and
regiired to be mentioned on dividend warrants, Shareholders are therefore requested o submir a copy of
their valid CNIC {only Physical Sharcholders) if not provided carlier to the M/s F.D Begistrar Services {Pvt)
Ltel (The Share Registrar). The Corporate Entities are requested to provide their National Tax Nuomber (NTH),
Please quote Folio Number with & copy of CNIC/NTHN details. In case of non-receipt of valid CHIC the Company
would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 5, 2012, of SECP read with SREO 19(1)/2014
[anuary 10, 2014, Please note that no dividend will be payable unless the CHIC number i35 printed on the
dividend warrants, failure to provide the same would constrain the Company to withhold dispateh of dividend
warrants.

7. Payment ot Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 provides that in the case of a listed company, any cash dividend
declared by the company must be paid electronically directly into the bank accounts of entitled shareholders,
Thervefore, all sharcholders are requested to fill in the Dividend Mandate Form available on the Company’s
website i.e. http:/ /www pakpaper.com, and send it duly signed along with a copy of CHIC ro the Registrar
of the Company M/s, F.D. Registrar Services (Pyvr) Ltd in case of physical shares, In case shares are held in CDC
then the Dividend Mandare Form must be submimed directly ro the shareholder's broker/ participant/CDC
pecount services. In case of non-submission of IBAN, the Company will withhoeld the payment of dividends
under the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Hegulations, 2017,

B. Change of Address and Quote Folio No. In Correspondence:
Members are also requested to notify any change in address immediately. The shareholders are tfurther
requested to quote thelr folio number in all correspondence with the Company and at the time of attending
the Annuial General Meeting,

9, Unclaimed Dividends and Shares (Important & Mandatory)
Shareholders who could not eollect their dividend fphysical shares are advised to contact the Share Registrar
of the Company to collect/inguire about their unclaimed dividends or shares, it any. Please note that in
complianee with Section 244 of the Companles Act, 2017, atter having completed the stipulated procedure,
all dividends unclaimed for three (3) years from the date due and payable shall be deposited 1o the credic of
the Federal Government and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan {SECP}).

10. Cirenlation of Notice of Meeting & Annual Accounts;
With reference to S.RO. 787(1)/2014 dared Seprember 8, 2014, issued by SECF; shareholders have an option
o recelve Annual Audited Financlal Statements and Notlee of Annual General Meeting through emall,
Sharvholders of the Company are requested to give their consent to the Company's Reglstered Office to update
our record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Finoncial Statements and Motice of General meetings
throngh email. However, if shareholders, in addition, request a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements, the
same shall be provided free of cost within seven | 7| days of receipt of such written request.
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11, Plucement of Financial Accounts on Website:
Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended June 30, 2025, have been placed on

the Company's website at www pakpaper.com

12. Deduction of Income Tax on Dividend
Members are informed that the rates of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax
Payer List (ATL) which are as under:

. Rare of tax deduction for shareholders appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) - 15%

ii, Rate of tax deduction {or shareholders not appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) 30%

To cnalle the company o make tax deductions on the amount of the cash dividend & 15% instead of 30%,
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of
FER although they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names sre entered into ATL. Further, according
to clarification recelved from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on the “Filer /Non-filer’ status
of the principal shareholder ag well as joint-holder{z) based on their shaveholding proportions. Therefore, all
shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide sharcholding proportions of Principal sharcholder
and joint-holder{s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Regisrrar in writing as follows:

Company . Folio /CT Taotal Frincipal Sharcholder Joint Sharcholder |
Mame | Account # Shares Mame and Shareholding | Name Shareholding
CHIC Froporrion and Fropartion
(Mo, of CHIC [MNo. of Shares)
| Shares)

*  The corparate shareholders having CDC aceounts are required 1o have their Natlonal Tax Numhbers (NTN)
updated with their regpective participants, whereas corporate phygical shareholders should send a copy of
their NTN certificate to the company or our Share Hegisorar M/s. F.D Registrar Services (Pvt) Lid, The
shareholders while sending NTH or NTHN certificates, as the case may be, must quote the company name
and their respective folio numbers,

13. Requirement of Companies {(Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018

Membere can exercise their right to vote through postal ballot e, by post or through electronic mode subject
to the requirements of Sectlon 143 -145 of the Companies Act, Z017 and applicable clauses of Companies
{Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018,

14. Consent for Video Conference Facility /Online Participation in AGM:

Under Section 132 (2) of the Companics Act, 2017, the Company receives consent from members holding in
wgpredate 10% or moie shareholding residing at a geographical location, to partieipate o the meeting through
video conference at least seven (7 ) days before the date of the meeting, the Company will arrenge video conference
facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city. Flesse Gl out the following and submit it to the
Regiztered Office of the Company seven (7)) days before holding the Anpual General Meeting, Those members wha
wish to desire online participation in the AGM wis wideo link, please send the required informaetion to

agm@Epakpapercem and cip@pakpapercom, with mention rthe subject “Registrarion for AGAM™

1/ We, of CHIC no. Contact no.

being o member of the Pakistan Paper Prodoces Limited, holding Ordinary Share{s) as por Reogister
Foliosobe no. herely apt for video conference Fcility at =il
address

15. Conversion of Physical shares into Beok Entry form:

Under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing Company shall be required to replace itz
phiysical shares with the book entry form in the manner as may be specified and from the date notified by
the Commission, within a period not exeeeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act,
2017,

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to canvert their physical shares into book-entry
form by depositing shares into Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by opening a CDC sub-account
with any broker or investor aceounts directly with CDC,
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS
TaE 202 FIEE] FiEF] P 2020 2016
Trading results
Tarnover 1,823,830 2125258 1,823,188 1,385,480 1,224,855 1,027,283 BEE T4E
Szles - Nat 1733507 1827 281 1,745,801 1,234,158 1,082 632 #3330 T34
Gross Profit 286,530 301,285 28T 188157 180,813 i 5T
Proft befors 15x 181,483 2311 1287 BOA7 ET04 2818 3562
Taxation 20041 75,100 43535 20883 2484 £.045 i)
Profit afertax 122422 155,811 Bg.gaz 1,744 Ti.563 15570 17875
Dividend
Cash Dividend B0O0% TE00% 100% 25.00% B0.00% 12505 1R00%
Siock Dividend
Cash Dividand Value £.00 20,000 32000 20,5600 41000 30,000 2000
Siock Dividend Valus - - - - - - -
Dividend Payout I1ETH ) I5.00% 32.30% SE.6T% 64.22% 44.51%
Finaneial Posifion
Tzl Azzatz 244 504 141387 1759387 1,800,840 1,308,431 13763 123
Paif up Lapasl 80000 00 BO.GO0 BO.GO0 BO.GO0 30000 .00
Rezenes 147074 1,061,342 1027474 230,558 ] 275,050 TR
Working capitz! 532388 430 201 403,450 308128 322418 207 378 M7
Current Ratic 24 i4 18 117 218 Ei] ]
Operating
Geoss Proft 17.25% 2530% 19.88% 15.33% 18T% 1081% T
Prefit befors 15x B3tk 1188% Tal% 7.33% BAE% 2IT% 274%
Profif after t=x 7% OB 510% 500% 8.40% 1.70% 208%
Rebirn on Equity 8% 23 B4R a0 T00% 183% 177%
Rehurn on Aszetz SIS T28% 5% J.B0% 505% 1483% ' AR%
Valuation
Eaming per share Lpre 13x) 20.18 2B.88 18.58 1130 1213 im e ]
Eaming per share (post tax) 153 1048 113 112 B.82 188 135
Breakup valus pershare 2185 mar 13643 122407 124.88 e 184
Assef ufiisation
Iwentery turnover ratio 38 405 415 1 7 407 462
Tiztat azsats honovar ratio T B0 [.EE L7 L78 (3] om
Froduction
Esereiza Books (Groose) £1.519 £ 5E A8 50,453 45223 &0, 466 e
Ampnia Paper (Refls 10 yds) 2,455 5434 15,283 B84 17875 7063 IE e
Fro-Labeis [Sg. Meter] £ 368,182 4832033 588713 5.561.11 0226624 SAMITIE  SITG4TE
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Statement of Value Added and its Distribution

2025 2024
Rupees in T Rupees in %
thousand thousand
Wealth Generated
Total revenue inclusive of sales tax & other income 1.928 554 2,128,857
Bought-in-matenal & services 963,095 1,105,414
953,857 100_00% 1.021.443 100.00%
‘Wealth Distributed
To Employees
Salaries, wages. bensfits & refated cost 133,960 13.84% 126,162 12.35%
To Gowvernment
Income tax, sales tax & workers' fund 233,100 24 DE% 278,748 27.38%
To Providers of Capital
Divadend to share holders 40,000 4.13% 80,000 5B87T%
Markup on borrowed funds 20,704 2.14% 35,381 J.46%
60,704 95,3681
Retained in Business
Depreciation, Amortization & retained profit 540,175 55.81% 520,175 BO.B3%
86T 938 100.00% 1,021,443 T00.00%
Wealth Distribution FY-2035 Wealth Distribution FY-2024
1£% 1l 12%

SE%

4%

To Emplayees To Gove

To Prowiders of Captial « Relaned in Susinses
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Chairman Review

Dear Shareholders

It is a matter of great privilege for me to present the Company's Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 and share with you an update on the
performance of our company,

Business Performance

By the grace of Allah, your Company has had a challenging, but profitable year, inspite of a
slight decline in sales and profit. Turnover during the year ending June 2025 declined by
10.05%. The profitability of your Company (PAT), declined to Rs. 122.4 million, which
amount to an EPS of Rs. 15.30 compared to 19.49 last year.

I compliment the CE, COO and his team for achieving these results, considering the fact that
the business conditions have been extremely challenging, due to high inflation and constant
dependence on IMF funding, to keep the economy afloat.

Board Performance

The Board performed its duties and responsibilities diligently by effectively guiding the
Company in its strategic affairs. The Board also played an important role in overseeing the
Management's performance and focusing on major risk areas. The Board was fully involved
in the budgeting and strategic planning processes. The Board also remained committed to
ensure high standards of Corporate Governance to preserve and maintain stakeholdervalue.
All Directors, including Independent Directors, fully participated and contributed in the
decision-making process of the Board.

The Company has an independent Internal Audit department and internal audit reports are
presented to the Board Audit Committee on a quarterly basis wherein areas forimprovement
are highlighted.

The Board carried out its self-evaluation and identified potential areas for further
improvement in line with global best practices. The focus remained on strategic growth,
business opportunities, risk management, Board composition and providing oversight to
the Management
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Acknowledgement

I thank the Company management and all the members of our Beard and the employees of
oitr Company who have worked as a team, to achieve this outstanding performance.

I look forward to continued innovation and all-round effort and vigilance during the
current year and in all times to come, to ensure sustained growth and profitability.

I am also thankful to Shareholders, Customers, Bankers, Regulatory Authorities and
other Stakeholders for their continued support.

Hbdl

Ahhas Sayeed
CHAIRMAN

September 12, 2025
Karachi
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 63rd Annual Report along with the audited accounts
of the company, The repart covers your company's activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, and
desecribes its operational and financial performance along with complianee details,

Operating Performance

By the Grace of Allah, your company had another good profitable year in gpite of many headwinds,
The top line shrunk by 9.34% with total turnover declining to Bs 1.93 billion. Exercise books,
Sensitized Paper and Photocopy paper had fall in sales of 21.02%, 13.99% and 30.78% respectively.
Pro Labels had an almost even year with a minor loss of .91% in sales. The fall in the top line
translated all the way down with GP decreasing by 23.59%, NP before tax by 30.13%, and NP afrer tax
by 21.48%,

Pro Labels:

Pro Labels continued its good performance and sales on both monetary terms and volume terms had
very small decline. The first 3 quarters were down but the last quarter we had a very good comeback
with excellent sales and thus managed to close the gap with last year. In spite of some drawbacks like
15% RD on Self adhesive label stock, we managed to increase our marging over the year due to very
good management of our supply chain. There was a decline in commodity prices over the year and
along with that we managed a very good mix of inventory procurement which helped our margins to
improve. Inaddition, we also managed to reduce our energy costs to a great extent by converring two
of our machines to LED curing from UV curing which is a reduction of more than 60% in electricity
consumption. A stable PKR and decline in interest rates also reduced our financlal charges which
helped our bottom line. Overall, we have seen a stable economy over the last one year and in the Iast
quarter we saw very good growth in sales driven mainly by the FMCG sector which had declining sales
for the first 30. Mashallah, your company has a very good mix of customers so where one sector
declines the other one is able 1o compensate as we saw very healthy growth in the 0il Market sector
with lubricant sales tnereasing heavily over the year, In addition, we also saw some growrth in
pharmaceutical clients and thiz helped overcome the loss of sales which we experienced in the FMCG
sector. Overall, the performance of Pro Labels was very satisfactory and we are expecting higher sales
next year,

Exercise Books:

Exercise Books had a very disappointing year. After 4-5 years of solid growth, we experienced our
first negative year with sales falling by 21.02%. This decline would have been even more severe if the
management had not concentrated more on institutional sales as market sales continued to plummer,
One of the main reasons was thar this year paper prices in Pakistan declined due 1o a dramatic slump
in pulp prices worldwide, This led to major fall in prices and in order for us to be competitive in the
market we also had to reduce our prices. This was due to the fact that the market was dumped with
low priced paper allowing the informal sector competition to start producing again in bulk. For the
last couple of years this sector had complerely vanished due to low availability of paper from smaller
mills. This has also led to an increase again in unscrupulous competition again where these informal
suppliers are offering products atvery low prices, This entire sector evades all Government taxes and
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duties and buys paper also from Mills which indulge in these unfair practices. The future outlook
continues to be very challenging as the fall in markets sales has affected us quite a bit and while we
are trying to counter the competition with reducing our prices but it will remain a big challenge. This
was the main reason that we had a huge fall in margins also in this sector as we were selling our copies
at a much lower price and using the expensive paper which we had purchased earlier. On a positive
note, our Zero Sales Tax rating was again renewed in this year's Budget. We will continue to
concentrate more on Institutional sales as the informal sector cannot compete with us in this sector
as all institutions require proper documentation for their purchases.

Sensitized Paper & Plotter Paper:

Sensitized paper and Plotter Paper sales continued to fall during the year and now the management
has decided to shut down this line of business. We are currently trying to sell all our Sensitized Base
Paper stock as Photocopy Paper. This is of course being sold at a considerable loss as Base Paper was
a very expensive item but we have no choice now as we do not foresee the demand for this item
improving as it is no longer used by anyone in Pakistan.

Financial Performance

We are pleased to report that in spite of the challenging year the company faced in terms of Ex Books
sales we have still managed to come out with a very good profit. The main reason being that the
decline in Ex Books profit was covered to some extent by an improvement in the profits of Pro Labels.
Falling commodity prices along with lower freight rates also helped our margins. Our Finance cost
decreased by 30.13% due to stability in exchange rate, and better management of cash flows including
recovery from customers which in turn decreased our Overdraft. The whole management teams need
to be commended for these efforts and we bow our heads in Thanks to Allah for what we have
achieved.

June, 2025 June, 2024
Profit before taxation 161,462,529 231,101,328
Taxation (39,040,987 {75,190,499)
Profit after taxation 122,421,542 155,910,829
Earnings per share 15.30 19.49

Declaration of Dividend

In light of the results, the Board is pleased to announce a Final Cash Dividend of 50% i.e. Rs. 5/- per
share.
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Financial Reporting

Let us mention here that this Company's financial reporting is based on the approved International
Aecounting Standards notified by the SECP and also complies with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2017,

Manufacturing and Operations

All our resources relating to the manufacturing facilities performed well and achieved positive gains
in efficiencies. We are constantly modernizing and upgrading all our manufacturing facilities to stay
well ahead of the competition. The company has expanded its solar panel capaciry and plans to
further expand on it to become more energy efficient as electricity costs in Pakistan continue to rise
to unbearable levels.

Future Prospects

The future prospects of our company are intricately linked with the Macroeconomic performance of
the country. In the last one year the country has been very stable which has helped the overall
economic situation of the country and we are now starting to again see growth in the economy which
will certainly help the Pro Labels business. Due to the immense competition by the informal sector in
Ex Books we have decided to concentrate more on institutional sales and improve our marging
through internal efficiencies and reduction of wastage. We are also hoping for further reduction in
interest rates in the country along with Forex stability as our profit margins are very closely linked to
that.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Being a Public Limited Company, we realize that we have a responsibility to this country and its people
at large. In this respect, we make donartions to several needy organizations,

Health

We are committed to demonstrating sound environmental performance by controlling the impact of
our operations and products on the environment and we further endeavor to comply with the
applicable environmental legislation, regulations, and standards laid down for pollution control in
the country, Your company is determined to play a role in promoting a better and ecologically friendly
furure in Pakistan, Installaton of a 300 KWh Solar energy system is our first step towards a cleaner
energy future,

The Board

Pakistan Paper Products Limited has an independent and objective Board, ronsisting of one working
and rest non-working Directors. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are different and
each have a clearly defined role profile,
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Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

*

We are pleased to report that your company has taken the necessary steps to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance as incorporated in the listing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of the operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

Proper books of accounts have heen maintagined by the Company.

In the preparation of financial statements, International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed.

There is no significant doubt about the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The system of internal control is sound in design. The system is being continuously monitored by
Internal Audit and through other such monitoring procedures. The process of monitoring internal
controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the conrrols
and bring improvements to the system.

Detail about taxes is given in the notes to the accounts.

Board & its committee meetings

During the year Four (04) meetings of the Board of Directors (BOD), four (04) Audit Committes (AC)
meetings and Two (02) HE&R Committes meetings were held. Attendance by each Director is as

under:
Number of meetings attended
Human Resource &
Name of Director MBE‘::]:d c Aur].it Remuneration
ng ommittee Committee
Mr. Abbas Sayeed 4 2 1
Mr. Abid Sayeed 4 4 il
Mrs. Muleika Saveed 4 - 2
Mr. Sayeed Imran 4 2
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed 4 il -
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salashuddin 3 4 -
Mr. Matiuddin Siddiqul 4 4 2
(NIT Nominee)

The Directors who could not attend the Board & Committee Meetings and requested for leave were
duly granted leave of absence from the meeting by the Board /Committees in accordance with the law.

Directors’ Training Program
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Out of seven Directors of the Company, three Directors are exempt from such certification as they
duly meet the exemption criteria given in the Code. Three have obtained certification under the
Directors’ Certification Training Program in 2015, 2018 & 2021 respectively. Therefore, over half of
the Board is qualified under the criteria of DTP and exemption criteria as per the Code,

The Directors of the Company are adequately trained to perform their duties and are aware of their
powers and responsibilities under the Companies Act, 2017, and the Regulations of PSX Rule book.

Statement of Compliance
The Board has adopted the Statement of Compliance. All employees are informed of this statement.
Material Changes

There have been no material changes and the company has not consciously entered into any
commitment that will affect its financial position.

Code of Business Principles

As a leading Paper converting company, a reputation for high ethical standards is central to business
success, The Code of Business Principles is already developed communicated and acknowledged by
each Director and employee of the company.

Risk Management

As part of its responsibilities, the Board of Directors have always kept a close watch on the socio-
economic environment and consequential internal and external risks that might impact the safe and
smooth operations of the Company and remained vigilant in identifying and mitigating risks
throughout the yvear. The Board identified potential risks, assessed their impact on the Company, and
formulated strategies to mitigate all foreseeable risks to the business. These strategies were enforced
through the Audit Committee to ensure that no gaps remained in risk mitigation.

Risk Assessment

Businesses face numerous uncertainties that might pose threats to their objectives and if not
addressed may cause preventable losses, The Board has carried out a vigilant and thorough
assessment of both internal and external risks that the company might face. The rising cost of raw
materials is the most imminent risk facing the company. The devaluation of PKR has made the risk
more pronounced. In order to curb the negative impact of this, the company has invested in strategic
relationships with its key international suppliers and ensured timely delivery. Availability of raw
materials is another risk that is faced by the company.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members from the Board, two are non-executive directors and
twoare independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director as required
in the CCG Regulations 2019. The Board of Directors has set out terms of reference for the audit
committee, The audit committee reviews the annual and quarterly financial statements, and internal
audit reports and holds its meeting before the Board meetings. The committee manages adequately
the system of internal control through the internal audit department and reviews the effectiveness of
operational and financial control,

Human Resource Committee

The Committee consists of four members from the Board: three are non-executive directors and one
is an independent director. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director, The
Committee reviews and formulates the HR & management policies of the company. The Committee is

also responsible for the remuneration of employees and ensures that it is aligned with the Company's
business strategy and long-term interests.

Operating and Financial Data

Operating and financial data and key ratios of the company for the last six years are annexed,
Auditors

The Board recommended the appointment of M/s. Faruq Ali & Co, as auditors for the next financial
year. The present auditors, M/s. Farug Ali & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, they
have offered themselves for reappointment.

Pattern of Shareholding

The Pattern of Shareholding as required under the Code of Corporate Governance is attached with
this Report.
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IN TERMS OF THE REQUIREMENTS STATED UNDER
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATION 2019

There are seven Board members including two female and five male directors, whereas the
composition of the Board is as follows;

Excoutive Director 01
Non-Exceutive Director 04
Independent Dircctor 02
Commitiees of the Board,

The board has formed commitices comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committec
s Aisha Farict Salahuddin - Chairperson
Mr. Abbas Sayced
Dr. Asadullah Saced
Mr. Khurram Afltab

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Mr. Mohsin Safdar
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Mrs Muleika Sayeed

Directors' Remuneration

Through the Articles of the Company, the Board of Directors is anthorized to fix the remuneration of
.F:H.I‘I""III'E\'!"I MNon-Execurive, amd ]l‘u]l.-pl:lhil'n'l' Mrectors From thme to thme, In this l'lrg:il'll. the Board of
Directors has developed a Remuneration policy for Execurive, Non-executive, and Independent
Directors of the company,. Hemuneration of Chief Executive and Divectors for the Financial Statements
of the year ended June 30, 2025, are disclosed on the page 65  of Financial Statements

Acknowledgments

The Directors are grateful to the valued customers for thelr continued support. They also appreciate
the support recelved from the Company’'s hankers, shareholders, and orther stakeholders who
continue o repose TrUst o your company. In additlon to this, directors also record thelr sincere
HpIu‘L-l.‘:‘I.:sriun for the L‘.l:rlJIn.-J".i'[!u:l‘.l recefved from rhe HHHI.IjﬂIl.:II'H Securities & Exch :II'IHI.' Commission of
Pakistan (SECPF} and Pakistan Stock Exchange-PSX.

All the employees of the company have pur in real reamwork and the results are evident, Directors
[ lnal‘ﬂTltl:’:l'L- all thie r.-l'l'lllll.l:ly'i-lrri fur thelr continuerd ]Jt‘l'fl]l"i'l'll'l Fiees,

On hehalf of the Board of Directors

ABBAS SAYEED ABID SAVEED

Cliafraran Chief Lixcecestive
September 12*, 2025
Karachi
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

MName of the Company: Pakistan Paper Products Limited.
For the yvear ended: June 30, 2025,

Pakistan Paper Products Limited (“the Company™) has complied with the requirements of the
Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations™) in the

tollowing manner:

l. The total number of directors are seven as per following:

a) Male: Five
by Female: Two
2, The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board™) is as follows;
| Category Names
Independent Directors Mr, Mohsin Safdar
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin
| Mon-Executive Directors Mrs, Muleika Sayeed
Mr, Abbas Sayeed
Dr. Asadullah Sayveed
Mr. Khurram Aftab
Mr. Mohsin Safdar
| Executive Director Mr. Abid Sayeed
‘: Female Directors Mrs. Muleika Sayeed
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

3. The two elected independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and
experience to discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and
regulations. As they fulfill the necessary requirements as per applicable laws and regulations,
henee, appointment of a third independent director i not warranted,

4. The directors have contirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

5. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures,
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6. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars
of the significant policies along with their date of approval is maintained by the Company.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have

been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
board.

9. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

10. Out of seven, Three Directors have obtained certification under Directors’ Training Program in
2015, 2018 & 2021 respectively and three Directors are exempt from such certification as they
duly meet the exemption criteria given in the Code.

11. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

12, The Board has developed and implemented Anti-Harassment policy.

13. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

14, The board has reconstituted the following committees after the Election of Directors held on
11-05-2023:

a) Audit Committee
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin — Chairperson
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Dr. Asadullah Saeed
Mr. Khurram Aftab
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b)

1&.

17,

18,

15.

20.

21,

Human Resource & Remuneration Commitiee
Mr. Mohsin Safdar

Mr. Abbas Sayeed

Murs. Muleika Saveed

,The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee for compllance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

Audit Committee Four quannﬁ_-;- nmeﬁngs held -r:iui-_lng the financial
- |yearendedJune30, 2025
Human Resource & Cne meeting held during the financial year ended

Remuieration Comimiltiee June 30, 2025,

The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are copsidersd suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and ae conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company.

The statutory auditors of the company have contirmed that they have been given a satistactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all of
their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants ([FAC)
guldelines on code of ethies as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm
invalved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, campany
secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors ar the persons associated with them have not been appointed o provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines (n this
regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regutations have beon complied with.

Gender Pay Gap Statement

The Board is committed 1o lormulate a gender diversity policy lfor recruitment, promotion,
gender pay gap analysis, retention and development of female employees, We are committed
to enhancing gender diversity by ensuring that our hiring, retention, and promotion processes
prioritize education, skills, technical expertise, experience, and job performance, free from
pender bigs, This commitment has fosiered a diverse workforee and significantly contributed
to the sustained growth of our organization,

As required under the SECP circular no, 10 of 2024, the following is the Gender Pay Gap
calculated for the vear ended June 30,2025,

+  Mean Gender pay gap: -13.60%
«  Moedian Gender Pay gap: -20.08%
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22. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32, 33
and 36 is as follows:

# Nnn-ﬂdandﬂmry requirement | Reg No, Explanation

1 The Board may constitute a separate 29 {1} Currently, the Board has not
committee, designated as the constituted a separate
Nomination Committee, of such Nomination Committes and the
number and class of directors, as it functions are being performed by
may deem appropriate in its the Board.
circumsiances.

2, The Board may constitute the Risk 3001) Currently, the Board has nat
Management committee, of such Constituted a separate Risk
number and class of directors, as sit Management committee and the
may deem appropriate in its functions are being performed by
circumstances, to carry out a review The Board.
of elfectiveness and present a report
to The Board,

3. The Board is responsible for 104 (1334 The Board will ensure that the
Governance and pversighi of Company has addressed
Sustainability risk and opportunities Sustainability-related risk and
and takes appropriate measure (o Opportunities. Also, it will
Address it, Further, the Board ensure that company's
ensures that the company's sustainability and
sustainability is DE&] related strategies are
Periodically reviewed and periodically reviewed and
monitored. monitored in future,

4. The Board may establish a dedicated | 104 (5) Currently the Board has not
Sustainability committee or assign constituted a separate
additional responsibilities to an Sustainability committee and the
existing Board Committee. funcrions will be performed by

the Board Audit commitiee,

ABBAS SAYEED

Chairman

Karachi: 04" September, 2025

ABID SAYEED
Chief Execurive
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Eeview Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies {(Code of Corporate
Governance) Regunlations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Complhiance with the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2010 (“the Fegulations™) prepared by the Board of Directorsof b h  hk

(“the Company™) for the year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with the requirements
of Regulation 36 of the Fegulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations iz that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responstbility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Fegulations and report if it does not and to highlizht anv non-
compliance with the requirements of the Fegulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiriez of the
Companyv’s persomnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Fegulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accountinge and imternal control systems sufficient to plan the audst and develop an effective audit approach
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directorz’ statement on internal control covers all
rizks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's
corporite govemnance procedures and risks.

The Begulaticns reqguire the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon recormmend ation of
the Audit Committes, place before the Board of Durectors for their review and approval, its related party
tranzactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Commiftes.

Bazed on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance in all material respects. with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the vesr ended 30 June 2025,

Place: Karachi

Dated: 15 SEP 2025
UDIN: CR20251017314DCIj7du

Engagement partrier: Muhammad Faizal Nini.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tao the members of Pakistan Paper Produocts Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Paper Products Limited | ‘the Company” ), which
commprise the statement of finuncial position os at 30 June 2025, the statement of proft or loss, the statement of
comprehensive inceme, the statement of changes In equity, the statement ol cash fAows for the year then ended,
and notes o the financial stalements, including matenal accounting policy mformation and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and beliet, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

[n our opinion and (o the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profil of less, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash Aows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards a5 applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companiés
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a frue and fair view of the state of the
Company's afTairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr andit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Aunditor s Responsitilivies far the Audit aff
the Fingmeial Statemenis section of our report,. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Cade of Ethics for Professional Accounrants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistun (“the Code™) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
regponsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriale to provide a basis {or our opinion,

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our profeéssional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the linancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
an these mutiers,
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Following i the key audit matter:

& COo.
Continnation Sheet

S.nao,

Kev audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Our andit procedures to address the Kev
Audit Matter included the following:

The Company 15 engaged in production and sale
of exercize books, pro-labels and  sensitized
papers. Rewvenue recopnition policy has been
explomed innote 3,16 to the Gnoancial stalements,
and the related amounts of revenue recognized
durimg the year are disclosed m note 23 w0 the
financial stalements,

The Company generaies revenue from zale of

goods (o domesie cusiomers,

Roevenue  from  sales is  recopnized  when
performance obligation is satisfied ns per the
requirements  of the Internofionol  Finaocial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) |5 — *Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
mtier since it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company and because of the
potential risk that revenue ransactions may not
hive been recognized on pomnl in time basis 1.e,
when control of goods is nsforred 1w the
customer, m fing with the accountng policy
adopted and may not have been recognized in
the appropriate pariod,

#  Considered the appropriateness of revenue
recognition policy and compared it with the
applicable accounting standards;

&  Obtoined on understanding of revenoe and
sssessed the desipn, nnplementation  and
operating effectiveness of controls arcund
recognition of revenue;

* (Checked on  sample  basis  relevant
underlying  supporting documents  for
ensuring  that management has  complicd
with the revenus recognition criteria as
introduced by IFRS [5;

®  Tested timeliness of revenue recognition by
comparing  andividue]  seles  transachons
before and after the year end to underlving
documents and hy checked significont credin
notes issued after vear-end; and

=  Ewvaluated the adeguacy and appropriatensss
of  disclosures made  in the financial
stibements,

Information (dher than the Financial Statements and Auditors” Report Thereon

Manapement is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Beport, but does net include the financial statements and our auditers” report thereon.

Our spinion on the linancial statements does not cover the ether information and we do not express any form of
assuranes conclusion thereon,

[n connection with our audit of the Onancial stalements, our responsibifity is 1o vead the other information and,
mn doing so. consider whether the other informition s materially inconsistent with the fnancial statements or

our knowledge obtaimed i the andit or otheranse appears to be matenally misstated. [F, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there 15 0 material nusstatement of this other information, we are required Lo
report that fact, We have nothing to repon in this regard
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management 18 responsible for the preparation and fuir presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companics Act,
2017 (XIX of 2007} and for such internal control 4s management determines 18 necessary to enable the
preparation of finaneisl statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finaneial stotements, management is vesponsible for assessing the Company s ability 1o continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis
of secounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's linancial reporting process.
Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and to issue an auditor’s report that inclodes our
opinion. Reasonable agsurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected o imfluence the economice decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
stalements,

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstmtement of the Nnancial statements, whether due to fraod or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is
sulficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting a material
misstatement resulting from frowd is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, mtenbonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of imternal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing nn opinion en the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal conirol.

= Ewvaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the going convern basts of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a
materinl uncertainty exists, we are required o depw attention in our auditor’s report 10 the related disclosures
in the Nnancigl statements or, i§ such disclosures are insdequate, to modily our opinion. Ouwr conclusions
are bazed on the audit evidence obtained up to the dote of our puditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cavse the Company to cease 1o continue as a going concein,
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure und content of the financial stilements, ineluding the disclosures,
mnd whether the lnancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that
pchieves fair presentaiion,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the it and significant audit Mndings, including any significant deficiencies i mitemal control thal we identify
during our andit.

W also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence. and o communicate with theny all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
bt thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matlers that were of most
significunce in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and ave therefore the key audit matters.
We deseribe these matlers in our auditer’s report unless law or regulalion precludes publie diselosure about the
matier or when, in extremely rare cirewnstances, we determine that s matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report thar in our opinion:

ab  Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Aet, 20017 (XIX
of 2007

b} The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash tlows together with the notes thercon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2007} and are in agreement with
the books of account and returns;

¢t Imvestments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the yvear were for the  purpose of
the Company's business: and

d) Lakat was deducted af source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinanee, 1980 (XVII of | 9800,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhamimad Faisal Mini.

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Dated: 15 SEP 2025

UDIN: ARZOIS017TEY=JBIZsbH
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STATEMENT OF FINANCTAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 20215
02E 024
ASSETS T Rupees) —
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and squipment 4 1371, 7354655 1,313.671.838
Intanzible azsets 5 - 94 163
Lonz term deposits 1,380, 572 1,675,258
1373715327 1313.441,261
CURREXNT ASSETS
Stores and spares o.046,500 10,037,030
Stock-in-trads g 387,830,240 335,043,010
Trade debis - Unsecured, conzidared good ) 304,203,342 346,734,818
Advance: and other receivables ] 156,126,150 105,612,380
Dieposits, advances and short term prepayments o TA5E 336 303,030
Cazh and bank balances 10 5,613,300 7,125,720
870,778,836 815,886,023
k] FI41.377 78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARFE CAFITAL ANDN RESERVES
Authorised chare capital
15,400,000 (2024 15 ¢00,000) Ordinary sharez of F=. 10/~ sach 150,000,000 150,000,000
Izmed, subscribed and paid-up chare capital 11 20,000,000 B0, 000,000
Fevenue ressmves TIT. B4, 043 G104 028
Capital rezerve
Surplus on revaluanion of propercy, plamt and equipment 12 052855207 930300 935
1750, 740 255 1,661,341 084
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dizferrad tax liability - Met 13 57,460,454 55.141.541
Dieferrad liability for staff sratuity 13 23,523 266 19,028,330
Long term loan: - Secured 13 72,145,535 62,852,131
Liahalitie: against azz=ts subject to muzharak=h Anancing 16 - 2,878,585
Deferred grant 17 2,163,455 3,132,610
155,371,742 143,030 327
CURREXNT LIARILITIES
Current portion shown under cwrent liabilities 18 38,800,624 26,360,800
Current portion of deferred government grant 10 1,026,135 1,148,558
Short term borrowings - Secored 20 25,742,481 137,792 254
Creditors, accrued and other Hakbilities 11 100,078,000 136,639,788
Unclaimed dividend 12,646,806 12,285,638
Provizien for axation - et - 17,560,184
338,383,006 335,004,223

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTE

[ =]
()

1,244, 504,063 2,1&1&11':2&1

The arnmexed notes form an integral pars of these fTnancial ssatements.

‘57./-’.--"'-

ABBAS SAYEED MUHAMMAD YUSUF ABID SAYEED

Cheaintinn Chief Financial Gfficer Chigf Faterutive
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ) JUNE 2025

Sales - Net

Cost of sples
Gross prodit

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses
Other operating eaperises
Operating profit

Oither income
Finance cost

Profit before levies amd income s
Levies

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the vear

Earmings per share - Basic and diluted

Thve qonexed nedes form an imtegral part of these finencial siaienents.

et .

ABBAS SAYEED MUHAMMAD YUSUF
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

23

24

25
26
7

28
29

30

3l

Nutes

2025 1024
{Rupees)
1,733, 597.216 1,9237.281,002

i1.434.637,.714) (153601 5,693
298,950,502 391,265,339
(125, 142) (54.350,312)
124,506.315) (21,265,076
i16,522.878) (26,203,84A)

( FkE, 154,335)

{101,509, 254)

197,805,167 259,356,103
2,112,547 1.590, |68

(318.455.185) (50,853,945)
161,462,529 231,101,328
161 462,529 231,101,328

{34, 040,957) (75,090,459
122,421,542 155,910,829
15,30 19.49

Wikt

ABID SAYEED
Chief [secative
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXDED 30 JUNE 2025

Notes

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income |/ {loss):

ftems that will not be reclassified to statemeni of prafit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Related deferred tax

Femeasurement of defined benefit liabality 14
Related deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The aonexed notes form an iegral paer of these financial sioements,

S Y g

ABBAS SAYEED MUHAMMAD YUSUF
Chairwian Chief Financial Officer

2025 224
{Rupees)

[22.421.542 559105249
- 460,439 17|
- (X943 562)
: 457,496,309
(1428.522) 677,273
414.271 (216,727)
(1,014,251) 460,546
121,407,291 013,867,684

.

ABID SAYEED
Chief [xcecutive
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STATEMENT OF CHAMGES I EQUITY
FUMTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 1922

Linued, Hevenne pescrves Sarphe s
wattseribed wnil G o il Tkl revlustion uf Tatal
prald-up share il AMEHrIE TEVENUE preperty, plant wipalty
FEARVEY prufit
expinal PSS amd equipmyn|
(Rupres)
Balisnce i om | July 2023 BN T4 SHHL IR IR sk SRR S k1334 1,007,474 280
Preafit fut thet e condéd 31 Jume 204 - - 1535 Ulis 15550129 - TERN RS
Ut commprebrnsive incuime - - atiLidh Al S 457 406300 45750, 635
Total comprebemig oo for the vear - - 150,371375 156371375 A57 A% 300 1A AR
Surpilus on e sbastiom reabvod on disposal of fod sssess - Met of ax - - 0.7 2T [TE1M475 -
Tranafier g unappropeiaied profit o aceoumi
o Inenemeirtal depeeciatinm - Mt of tax LUl Ll fuhdi (BRI T
Trinsactinns wilh nwmen:
Final cush dnodemd ¢ #P relased 1o the vear onaded 30 Jime pui ] 1320000y | LLHERE T VLTHHL{KE,
Inte=irii cash dividend 50 13% reliled #o the period ended 11 Blecernber 1003 - - 28,1000 | 28 [HH1 00 | - 1R T (o
Balarice is ai 30 June 2024 HIODHHD A S (0 A7H 028 AR 030 19% 4in | E6034] 0
Prodil fuf the véer caded 311 Jume X025 - - 122,43 542 132431 542 - 112,421,542
Uy comsprhensie Biss e - 1mdsn (RELE LA - 04,255
Tl 2 ifrpefuchacfeddd dodi Tof th vear - s 12140729 128,407 29 = 20407
Suplus on revaharioe realieed on disposal of foued assob = Nl of @x - s 1,345 LI2R A5 i1 X541 5% -
Traneser ta |.u1.1|111m-|1ruh.\.1 5\11,||il o acgnur
of ineramenal depeeoiaton - Mot of 1y - - 5216214 LI RE (BRI CN R -

Trwnacrioi sl owners

Final cash drvdend G 41 refated 1o the year enced M0 Fane 2024 T - TERE LN 1 LLIAHE R - 1 LLIHAL KR
Halance & at 30 June 2025 RO 147,941,008 SR, N TITAM, L8 YSE REE2IT 1,750,740 158

T anuicmecd iy iorn dar awenradd e ol Mo sl asanmanne,

= '

ABBAS SAYEED MUHAMMAD YUSUF ABID SAYEED
Chairman Chief Financial Officer Chief i xcecutive
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

MNotes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash pencrated from operations 32
Payimrents for:

Income taxes nel of refund received

Sindh Workers" Welfare Fund

Smith Workers” Profit Parbeapation Fund 214

Giratuity 14.1

Fmiance cost
Met cash generated from operting activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to property plant and equipment 4
Sale proceeds against disposul of fixed assets

Met cash used in mvesting acthivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long terme deposits
Leng-term finznees obtained
Repayment ﬁlth‘)ng-ll:nﬂ finances
Dividend paid
Met cash used in Nnancing sctivities

Mel merease m cash and cash equivalents
Cosh ond cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cush and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

The annexed paies form an integral part of these financial statemenis.

e LA M
sl 2=

MUHAMMAD YUSUF
Chief Financial Officer

ABBAS SAYEED
Chatrman

2025

{Rupees)

348,221 Y88

(114,306,468
(5082779
{12,436, IR
(2,146 779)
{42,158 658)

2024

115670499

{46,886, TRE)
(2,996,593
(7,137 586)
(2,352.434)

(56,737,540)

171991208

[95,455 858

(F11,942,6%0)
3706157

(29.030,575)
1,317 260

[ 10#,236,533)

(27713315

(314.384)
51,758,104
(33.014.657)
13163 EET)

{430,300

(26,802,115)
(57,721.531)

{13.209.703)

(R4,073 Ad)

30,545,062

(130,674,234)

82,768,897

(213443131

(80,129,172)

(130.674.234)

Witk

ABID SAYEED
Chief secusive
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PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 JUNE 2025

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was meorpornted o Pakistan as a prvige homted Company o July 962 under the Compames Act, 1913
{now the Companies Act, 2007 To was converted into public Company and listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (now
Pakistan Stock Exchange) m July 1964, The mam business activity of the Company iz the production and sale of exeroise
hooks, pro-labels and sensitized papers,

The geographical location and address o Company’s business units including plant is as under:

The registered office of the Company along with itg ploanl @5 situated at D-58, SITE, Estate Avenue, Karachi,
The Company also bave o sales office in Lahore, Pakistan,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

11

.2

2.4

Statement of complinnee

These financial statements have been prepaced in aceordance with the aceounting and reporting standirds as
applicable in Pukistan. The accounting and reporiing standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- Imternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) ssped by the International Accounting Standards
Hoord {[ASE) os netitied under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and dircctives issued under the Companies Acl, 2007

Where provisions of ond directives tssued under the Companies Act, 20017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Aoy, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial stotements have been prepared under the histoneal cogt conventlon except the obligation in
respect of grubmty fund which iz messured st present vilue and fiems of propeciy, plint and equipirent which srs
carried at revalued anounis

Functinnal and presentation currency

Items included in the financial stalements are mensurad using the currency of the primary economie environmenl
in which the Company operaics, The fnancial siatements are presented in Pak Rupees, which s the Company’s
functional and presentation currency und hove been soumded off to the nearest rupee.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Ihe preparation of the finoncial statements in conformity with approved sccounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management fo make pedgmrents, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reporied amounts of nssets and liabilities and income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates,

Exstimustes ond nnderlving assumptions ove reviewed on an ongoing basis. Bevisions (e sccounting estimates ars
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any fulure periods afTected,

In particular, wmformation abeut sigmficont aress of estumation, uncertinty and enteal judgments o applying
aceounting policies that heve the most significant affect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
e s filows:
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241

242

2.4.3

2.4.4

245

246

Operating fixed assets, revaluation and depreciation

The Company reviews appropristencss of the e of depreciation, vseful lives and residual values
used in the caloulotion of depreciotion. The estimates of revalucd amounts of revalued assets are based
on valustions curmied owt by n professional valuer., Further, where apphicable, an estimate of the
recoversble amount of assets s made for possible impaimment on a&n annual basis. In making these
extimutes, the Company uses the technicol resoorces available with the Company, Any change n the
chitimates in the future might atfeer the carrving amount of respective item of property, plant and
equeipiment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and imparment,

Trade debis and ameunt due from reluted parties

The Company reviews its doubtful debis st each reporting date to access whether provision should be
recocded in the profit and oss account. In particular, judgment by management 8 required in the
estumuites of the amount and timing of future cash Nows when determiming the level of provision
required, Such estimaies are based on assumpiions aboul & pumber of fciors and actaal resulis may
difTer, resulting in future changes o the provisions.

Income tnx

[ making the estimates for ineome ax corrently pavablie by the Company, the management considers
the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on cerlain 1ssues in the past,

Stock in trade

The Company reviews the nat realizable value (NRV) oTstock in trade 1o sssessany diminution in the
respective carrving vialues. Any change m the estimates o future years might offect the caming
amotnts of stock in rade and cormesponding effect in profit and loss scoount of those fuire vears, Met
realizable value 12 determined with respect o estimnted selling price less estomated expenditures 1o
make the sales.

Sitores and spares

The Company reviews the net realizable valoe (NBV) and mmpaimment of stores and spare parts to
assess any diminution ip fhe respective careving values and wherever required provision for RV /
vmparmenl 15 made, The caloalation of provision iovolves the use of estimates with regards (o future
estimated use and past consumption along with stores and sparcs holding period.

StadT retirement benefits

Clertiin petuarial assumptions have been used o3 disclosed in these finameial stotemenis (oote 143 for
the actuanal valuation of unfunded gratuity scheme. Changes in these assumptions ™ future vears may
eifect the Hability under this scheme in those years

2.5 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and amendmenis to accounting and reporting standards

Z2.5.1

Amendments (o accounting and reporfing standards and interpretations ( guidance that became
eMlective during the vear

There were certain amendmenty to avcounting and reporting standards that became applicable to the
Coanpany during the vear, These do not have any material impact on the Company’s linancial
reporting nnd. therefore, hove not been disclosed i these financeal statemaents.
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.52

Mew and Revised Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved sccounting standards
that are not yet effective

The fillivedng standards, amendments and mterpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the dute mentioned soninst cach of them, These standerds, interpretations and
the mmemdments are cither not relevant 0 the Company's operitions or gré notexpected to have
signiticant impect on the Company's financial statements other thom certain additonnl disclosures,

Amendments 16 IAS 21 The effecis of changes m foreipgn exchange mics’ - | July 2025
Lock of exchonpeability

Amendments oo 1AS 7 Srtement of Cosh Flows' amd [FRE 7 'Financial 1 Januiary 2026
Instruments: Msclosures' - Suppher Finonce Armangements

Amndiments 1FRS 9 and IFRS T peparding the povier purclise agredinmnts I Jumuary 2026
Annual Improvements o IFRS Accounting Standards <V olume 11 I Junuary 2026
IFRS 51 General Reguirements for Disclosure of Sustuinabilitv-reinied Ol July 2027

Fimancial Information
IFRS 82 Climate-related Diseloswres 00 July 2027

Amendments o IFRS 7 'Financial imstrumeniz - Disclosures' and IFRS 9 I Jamuary 2026
Tancml  Iostroments' = classificaton aod  owasumement Al (nopcial
nstruments

Standard [FRS 17 Insarance Contract’ {1 Famuary 2027
Amendment to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Deterred
Irvestor and its Associate or Joint Veniure indefinitely

Other then the aforesaid smendments, the International Accounting Stundands Board (LASH) has ulsa
st the following standards which huve not been adopted locally by the Sceurities aml Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS5 1 "Furst Time Adoption of Internationa] Financmal Reporting Standards’

= [FRS 18 "Presermion and Disclosunes in Financal Staiemenis’

= IFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures'

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies, eé out below, hove been consistently applied o all the periods presented o these
finnmeinl statements,

31 Property. plant and equipment

Item of property, piant and equipment is recopnized as asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
assectaied with the asser wall flow 1o the company and it cost to the company can be measured relaably
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Ady item af property, plant and equipment, which gualifies for recegnition ag an asser, ig initgally messured at ite
wost, Cost includes expenditire that 15 directly attributable (o the sequisiton of the wem, Subsequent o mitml
recognition items of property, plont and equipment are carmied st a revalued smount. bemg its fair value at the
date of the revalustion less any subseguent accumuloted depreciation and subsequent accumulsted impairment
fosses, Revaluations ane made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not Jdiffer materially
frem that whieh would be determimed vsing the G value ot the balones sheer date

Any revaluation meresse artsme an the revaluation of gssets 2 recogmised 0 other comprehensive income and
presented as a seporate component of equity as “Revalustion surplus on property, plant and equipment”, excemt
to the exieni thai it reverses a revaluation decrease for-the saime sssel previously recognised in prolii or loss, in
which case the. incregsse 15 crediled to profit or loss (o the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decresse i carryiog wmount arising an the revaluation of assets 18 charged to profit ar loss {o the extent that it
excesds the balonce, 1f any, held 1o the revalustion surplus on property, plant und equipment relating to a
previous revalustion of that asset. The revaluntion reserve 18 not svailable for distribution to the Company s
shareholders, The surplus on revalued assets 10 the extent of incremental depreciation charged (pet of deferrad
tax) 18 transferred 0 unappropriated profit,

HSubsequent costs are inchuded e the assel’s camymng amoun! oF recopnided 88 28 separale assei, A8 ppproprigte;
only when it iz probable that future sconomic benelits associated with the item will Qow to the Comprny and the
cosi al the item con be imeasured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income stateément
durmg the fnoncial year in which they ore mcurmed.

Crpitnl work in progress iz stated at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Dreprecialion o these assets, on
tho same basis as othor property assets, commences when the asssts are ready for their intended e,

Depreciation is chorged so a3 to write off the cost or revaluation of asscts, other thon lesschold lond and copital
work in progress; over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method, o the bosis of rotes
specified in note 4, The depreciation for asscts acquired of disposed of during the vear 8 charged from the
mionth of acguistion or up to the maonth of dispesal of such sssets respectively

Azsets held under [inance leases are depreciated over their expected wseful lives on the same bazis as cwned
A5

The cnin or loss arsing on the disposal or retirement of an osset 1s determuned 58 the difference between the
siles proceeds nnd the carmying amount of the asset ond s recognized in income.

Intangible assets

An mtangible asset 15 recopnised as an asset 1f it 15 proboable thar future econome bepefis atnbutoble to the
assel will flow 1o the Company and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Gencrlly costs associated with developing or mmntonung computer software progrommes are recognised 65 an
cxpense @3 incurred. However, costs. that are directly associnted with sdentifinble sedtware and have probable
eeonomic benefits exceeding one year, are recogniscd a3 an intangible asser. Direct costs include the purchase
cast of software and related overbiead cost Intangible assets sequired separately are messured ono initial
recognition 3t cost Follewing imitinl recogmition, misngible sssets are carmied at cost less accumulsted
ameartization and accumulated impairment lesses, iFany, thereon.

Iitongible osset with & defimite useful life 18 amoOrzeed on 8 straight lne bosis over 108 useful life. Admorbeition
om all sdditions i intangibles 18 charped from (e month mowhich the asset 18 avaalable for uss and on disposats
upto the month of disposal. Amortssation charge 13 recogmised in the statement of profit or loss. The mte of
mmortization is disclosed in note 5,
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Stores and spares

These are valued ‘at lower of cost ond estimated net realizable volue. Cost comprises cost of purchose and other
costs mowmed m brnging the stores and speres to their present focstion aod condinon. Cost significs the
weighted averuge cost. Avernge is caleulated os cach addimomnl shipnsent bs received.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade is valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.

Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direet labowr and these overheads that Tuve boen inciarred
in bringing the anventories (o the present location and condinon, Cost s caleusbaied wsing the weighted average
ingthod, Average ixealculated as cach additional shipinent i recerved.

Het realizable value- signifies the estimaied =elling price o the ordinory course of business less oot of
conmpletion and cosl necessary @ be ncuimed in order o ke the sile.

Finnneinl instrumenis
A51  Initlal measurement of financial assen

The Company classifies ils [inoncinl assets mto following three categories:
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT),
- Foar voalpe throwgh profit or loss (FYTPLY, moul
- Measurcd ot amortised cost,

A financial assel 18 amtalby messured ot furr valoe plus, for an sem ool 3t FYTPL, transsction costs
that are directly attributable to s acquisition

Subsequent measurement

Dbt Invesiments al FYVOC] These psseiz are subsequently measured al fair value, Interest /
mark-up income calcolated using the effective interest method,
fopesgn exchange pains and losses and imparment are recognited
It e statesment of prolit of loss account. Other fat pains sl
losses are recognised i other comprehensive income. On de-
recognition, gaims and losses accwmulated in other comprehensive
income sre reclassifiod o the staremaent of proliv or foss account

Equity Investments ag FYOCI These sssets are subseqoently measured gt fair value. Dividends
are recopiized - ag income in the statement of profit or foss account
unbess e dividend clearly represents 3 recovery of pant of the cost
of the investment. Cithet ned gaing and losses gare recognised in
other comprchensive income amd are never redlassifiod ta the
staperment of profit or loss account.

Finamcinl assets st FYTPL These asscts are subscguently measnured at fair value. MNet gains
and lozses, includimg ooy interest J mark-up o dividend  income,
are rewognised i the statement of profit or loss ascount.

Financial asseis measured at These assers are subseguently measured at amonised cogt using the

amornised cost gffective intorest method, The amomised cost 3 reduced by
impairmeni losses, Inderest / mark-up income, foreign exchange
cains ahd losses and impairment are recognised i the statement of
profil or loss accaunt.
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3.5.2

Mon-derivative financial assets

All non-dermvative financial assets are initlolly recogmised oo trade date Le, date on which the
Company becomes party fo the respective contractunl provisiona, Mon-derivative [linancial sssets
comprize leans and recovables thind are linancial asses with Gixed or determnable paviments that aes
ot quoted in active markets and meludes rade debts, advances, other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent, The Compony derccognises the financial pssets when the comrctual nights ia the cash
flows from the hsset cxpires or it wansfers the rights to reccive the comtractual cash flows in a
rransaehon mowhich substemtially ol of the nsk and rewards of ownershp of the nancal asscls ang
transferred or it neither transfers nor retain subwstantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retn control over the ransferred nsset

3.5.2.1  Trade debis, advances and other receivables

These are classafied ot amortised cozt amd are tatially recogaised when they are originated
and measured at fuir value of consideration receivable. These ossets are wrnitten of F when
there 2 no reasonpble expecttion of recovery. Actoal credit loss experience over past
years is used 1o base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3522 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in stateoment of cash Qow, cosh and cash egquivalents
includes cash in hand, balances with banks and investments with maturities of less than
three months or less (rom seguisiton date thot are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in f@ir value and shor werm borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on
demand and form an integral pant of the Company s cash management.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date Le. date on which the Company becomes
pariy Lo the respective contrmetual provisions, Financial abilimies include mark-up bearing borrowings
ond trade end other pavables. The Company derecognises the fimancial liabilities when contractunl
obliganens ave discharged or cancelled of expire. Financial lability other than at fair volue through
profit or loss are imitially measored st fair value less any directly attnibotable transaction cost
Subsequent o imitinl cecopnition. these linbihties are messored at amortised cost usimez effective
interest rate method,

3531 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing cosrs

Maork-up bearing bormowings: are recogniscd initally at feir value, less naltributable
tronsuciion costs, Subseguent 1o mtal recogmtion, mork-up bearmge borrowings ars stafod
at amortised cost, while the difference between the gost (reduced for periodic payments)
and redemnption value 18 recogmised o fhe statement of profit or loss aecount over (he
pericdd of the borrowings using the effective interest method,

Borrowing costs that are divectly attributable (o the acguisition, consiruction or production
of a gualifving asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

353.2 Trade and other payables

Trade and other pavables are recognised initially st fair value plus directly attributabie
costs, 16 any, and subsequently measured at amorizsed cosis,
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3.54 Derivative financisl instruments - Cther than hedging

Dervatives thot do not gquolity for hedge ncoounting are recopmized m the statement of [inancial
positicn at estimated Enr value with corresponding effect to statement of profin or loss account.
Derivative fimancial instruments are carried a5 assets when fair value i3 positive and Babilities when
fair volue is nepstive.

355  Derivative financial instroments - Cash flow hedges

When a derivative i designated a8 a cash low hedging instrument, the effective portion of chanpes in
fmir walue of the derivative 18 recognised in other comprebensive meome and accumulited in hedging
reserve, Any ineffechve portion of changes m e value of denvative 18 recopnised imunediaiely in the
stptemient of profil or less account. The amount accomulsted o eguity 15 removed thersfrom and
imeluded in the initial carrving amount of non-financial ssset upon recognition of non-finoncinl sssct,

The foir volue of forwerd exchonge contraets 15 estimated using approprinte valustion technigues.
These: are carricd a8 nssets when the fair value iz positive and liabilities when the fair value iz
egative.

356 Offseiting of Minancial asseis and Noancial Habilities

Finoncisl sssets and finsncial babadities are offset and the net amount 18 repoted o the Gnomeiol
stniements only when the Compnny has currently legally enforceable righi to set-off the recopnised
amounts and the Company mtends cither o setile on a8 net basis or to realise the nssets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneausly. Tha legally cnlorceable right must nat be contingent on fulere cvents and
mugl be enforceable in normal course of bosiness and in the event of defaull, insolvency or winding up
of the Company or the counter parties.

Trade dehis

Trucle debts and other roceivables are ztated imitially a1 fair value snd subscquently messured gt wmomiezcd cost

using the effective Inlerest rate imethad, T applicable, less provision Tor impainment, i any. A provision Tor

tmpatrment 15 establshed where there §8 objective evidence that the Company will ool be sble 1o collect all

amounts due pocording to the original terms of the receivables. Trade debts und receivables are writlen off when
conaidered irrecoverable.

Cash and cash cgqunivalents

Cash nnd cash eguivalents comprise cash and chegoes o hand, batonces with banks, térm deposits with original
matanty peried of three months o less, short term runming, finances and temporry book overdrawn balances,
Cash and cash equivalents are eamiad nt cost

Trade and siher pavables

Trade and other payablcs are recognized initally at fmir wvalue plos dircctly auributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured ol amortiged cost.

SialT retirement benelits

The Company’s retirerent bene il plans comprises of provident lumd and gratwity scheme Tor eligible amplovees.
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Defined contribuiton plan

The Company operates an approved Provident Fund (defined coniribution) scheme applicable to all emploveess.
Monmihily contributions are misde by (he Company ond the cmplovees equally in secordance with the fund's rules.
The Company has no further payvment obligations once the contributions have been pad. The contributions are
recognized ag emplovee beneflit expense when they are due, Prepaid contributions are recopnizad as an assel (o
the extent that o cash refund ora redoction m the future povment 15 available.

Defiaed benofit plan

The Company operates a defined benefit plan comprising an unfunded grotuity scheme covering all permanent
emplovess, under which benefits are paid on cessption of emploviment subject 1o a8 minimum gqualifying period of
service. An approved gratuity fund trust 48 established for the management af the gratuity oblipsnon of the
company. Adinual conthibutions are mwadde o the fund based on sctuarial recommwendarions.  The actuarial
valuations are cormed oot wsmg Projected Ut Credit Method, Remesserement charge which comprses of
actuarial gaing and losses and the retum on plan assets (excluding interest ) are fecogmized immediately in other
comprehensive incoms.

Taxation
Currient

Provision for curment toxation i3 based on taxoble income gt the current rotes of taxation or based on tumover or
aceounting profit ol the specified rates. whichever g higher, after aking into account tax oredits and rebotes
aviloble.

Dheferred

Deferred tox 18 recopmised usmg the balance sheet Hobility method o respect of all temporary differences arisimg
from differences between the carrying amount of asseis and liahilitles in the financial statements and the
corresponding tnx hoses, Delerred inx labilities are gencrally recognised for all tnxable temporary ditferences
and deferred tnx nssets ara recopnised (o the extent thun it 15 probable thot taxable profit will be available apoinse
which the deductible temporary difTerences, unused s losses and ax credits can b ulilisgd,

Deferred tax assets ond hohilities are measured at the tax rates thot are expected to apply to the period when the
asset i5 realized or the lability iz setiled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enancted at
the reporting date.

2000 Final tax, designated o such under varous provisions of Income Tax Ordingoee, 2000, chargesd!
withheld ¢ paid om vorious income streams ond calculsted on basis other thon the taxable income are
mecopnized a3 & levy in accordance with the TAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minmmuwm Taxes ond Fingl Taxes issued by the Institite of Chortered Accountants of Pakiston vide
Clircular Mo 7 of 2024 dated 13 Mawv 2024,

Provisions

Provisions are recogniced when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation aza resulit of past
events, and it is moere likely tham nol that an cutflow of resources will be required (o settle the oblipation aml the
amoant has been relinbly measured.

Provisions are measured ul the present vinlue of the expenditures expected 1o be required to seitle the obliganon
using a pre-lax rate that reflects current markel gszessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic to
the obligation, The merease in provizion due to possage of time 18 recoznized s interest expense,
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312 Forevign currency trianshation

313

Foreign currency trananctions are transinoted into the functional currency using the exchonge cates prevailing at
e dates of the trapsactions, I any. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlemem ol such
mransactions and from the trunslation at year-end exchange rmies of monetury assets and Habilities denominoted in
foreign vurfencies are recognized in the income statenent, iF aiy,

Irnvprairmeni

3131

Financial assets

The Company recogpnises loss allowances for Expocied Crodit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financiol
mssels measured nt amortised cosl.

The Company tiedsures loss allowanees 41 an sivounl equal to hfetme ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at | 2-month ECLs;

- [Crebt securities that pre determumed to hove low credit risk ot the repornng date; amd

- Crher deln securities sl bank balsnce for which credic rsk (Le. the risk of defouk
occurring owver the expected [ife of (he financial instrument) hos not incressed sigmiticantly
sifce initial recognition;

Loas allowances for trade receivablos are always measured at an amount equal o liftime ECLs.

When determining whether the orednt nisk of a financial ossct has increased significantly since initinl
recognition aml owhen estimiiing BECLs, the Compeny  considers reasonable wmd  supporishle
mformation that 15 relevant and ovaileble without undue cozt or effort. This includes both quantitative
arid gualinative information snd analysis, based an the Company's historical experience and imfirmed
credit assessment and ineluding forward-looking information

The Company sesumes that the credit sk ona financial asser has imereased significantly i€ 1t i3 more
than past due foF a reasonable penod of tme. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that resuli froam all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. | Z-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that #re possible within the 12 months after the reporting dite (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the mstrument 18 less than 12 months). The maximum period
considored when estimoting ECLs 8 the muximum contraciunl peried over which the Compony is
cxposed tocredit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured 8t amortised cogt are deducted from the Gross carmving
wrmeund of the nesers,

The gross carrying amount of 8 financial asset s worten off when the Company has ao reasonabic
expectations of recovering ol a financial asset in itg enlirety or a portion thereol, The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect fo the timing and amount of writc-ofT based on whether
there 15 a reasonable expectation of recovery, The Company expects no sigmificant recovery from the
wnount writhen of, Howewver, financial assets that are written off could seill be subject to enforcoment
petivities 10 erder fo comply with the Company®s provedueres [or recovery of omounts due, The
adoption of the expoected loss approsch hos not resulted in any materigl change in impaimment
provizion for any finaneial asseq,
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3,032 Non-financinl assefs

The corrving wmounts oF the Company™s non-fnancial assets, other than deferred tax nssers amd
inventories are reviewed at each balance sheet dnte (o determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. IT such indication exists, the asset’s recovernble amount, being higher of value in use and
tiir valie less eosts to sell, i estimiated. Th assessing value e, the estimated futiie cash flows are
dizcounted to their present value using B pre-tax discount rate that reflects current morkel asscssments
of the tirme vilue of money aod the nsks speciie to the asset, For (he purpese of impmment besting,
psaets thal connot be tested individunlly are grouped together mio the smallest group of assets thot
peperales cash inflows from continuing use that are lorgely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets of groups of assets. An impainment loss is eecognised whenever the carrying amaunt of an asse
exceeds s recoverable smount. Impairment losses are recognised i the statement of profit or loss,

Government grants and assistance

The benefit of interest rate lower than market rate on bormowings obtained under Stale Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
under Refinance Scheines, 15 accounted for a8 & govermment grant which s the difference berween loan received
and the fair value of the lown, The differentinl amount is recognised und presented W stuement of finmncinl
position ad deferred government print.

Government grants refoting to costs ure deferred and recognised in the profit oc loss aver the penod necessary to
rwsiel them with the costs that they are imended to-compensate,

ke recognition of government grant in prefit or loss will be made on a systematic basis ower the term of related
lesian,

Dividend and appropriation to rescrves

Dividend distribution &0 the Company’s shareholders is recognized in the Company’s financial stniements in the
period in which the dividends are paid or approved by the Company’s shoreholders.

Ruevenue recognition

Sale of poody

Revenue 1s measured based om the consideration specified oz contract with 8 customer. Revens: from
opecations of the Company are recogmized when the goods are proviuded, and thereby the performance
obligntions are satisticd. The Coampany's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at the pomnt in time when
the poods are dispatched (o the custoomer, Invoices are penerated amd revenue 13 recopmised sl that pomt of time,
ag the contrel has been transferred to the customers. The Company ossessed 115 revenue arrangements Lgainst
specific criteria that st be met before revenue 15 recognised

Tnreresy income
Interest imcome 18 scorued on a time proporiionete basis, by reflerence to the pincipal owstanding and at the
applicable elfective inlerest rate,

Service (oo
Service income 15 recognized wheo reloted services are rendered.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit o loss sttributable by ordimory sharcholders of the Company by
the weightod avernge oumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS s determined by
adjusting the profit or loss atiributeble $o ordmary shoreholders and the werghted average number of oedinary
ahares outsiamding o the effects of all dilmive potential ordinary shares, iTany.
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AR Sepment reporting

Sepment informution iz presented on the same basis as that used for inemnal reporiing purposes by the Chief
Ohperating Pecision Maker (CODM ) The Company considers Chief Executive ag ite CODM who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessmg performonee of the opernting sepments. On the basis of o3 intemal
reporing structure, the Compony considers itself to be o single reportable segment; however, certuin information
aboul the Company s products, a8 required by the secounting and reporting standocds, s presented in note 37 fo

these Fnancial staiements,

PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

015

{Rupees)

Orperting fixned nssers 4.1 1 371,735,455 131367 834
Capital work in progress < AL cost 413 = i
1.371,735,635 1,313,671 838
4.1 Operating fixed assets
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4.2 The deprecistion charee for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 24 43.713,755 37 359650
Administrative expenscs 25 3807888 26154061
Selling and distribution expenses 26 30T0EIA 20 6GE
5,592,474 41 441,574
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4.3

4.5

4.7

Dietail of resets disposed of during the year:

Parinwbirn i I AT |- liouk vadem male proceeds F Eeninl 1 [ Ailndp wi dimpoeal { Pastic ulmrs of aywrs
deprochibian ais dbsgarsal
(LT ]
Vednigien
Flenala Ciie Pevmimiiy BRES 1R i Tan A e ek 3w g LM DOAHIT M Mgl Wil g il
bz v b iz b FiE 1 LEEREL (EER T (P Wamres

i e 200 Vi, TRE. 717 TR, AT 1 Eﬁ il }:‘u 157 diu il
B e 2024 b ; A J A7, phata iy

The revaluation of propeny, plant and eguipment was carried out a8 of 01 April 2024 by bd's. Paradigm
Inspections {(Pvi) Lid (an independent valuer whe @B located in Karachi) on the basis of their professional
akgeasient of prevailing morket values. The revaluation resulted a swmlus amounting to Ra865 344 million
which was incorporated in these financial statement.

Had there beon o revaluation, the net book value of the items of property, plant and equipnwent would have
been as follows:

2025 2024
(Rupees)
Lasehold land 191,203 190,203
Building on lexsehald lamnd
= Foulory 16,733,594 18,592,892
- Uffice TA5T 004 THEL 23N
Plant and machmery 32T 822 KA 27014717
Furniture and hxture 2041 456 2278075
Faetory and other eguipiment 1,281 382 073,173
Eleetnic equipment and fnngs 2,313,183 1,555,833
Commuiters Ind, a4 241652
Vehicles 23,157,759 15,543,232
Salar power system 14 861 055 10,553 554
405,219.23K 33H,LIR, 726

Lenschold land of the Company aod building thereon i siested gt Estate Avenue, SITE, Karscht, This
comprises of two plots of Tngd besmng plot s, D58 wath an accumubated ancs of 242 acres

The forced sale value of the revalued property, plant and equipment owned by the Company had been asgessed
at Bs B350 million (2024 Re 1039 437 million).

Capital work in progross - At cost

Opening balance -- I a4 550

Additions during the year — 1.B63 350

- 3ROR, 2HD

Capitalized during the year - {3 ROE 20
4,81 = ==

481 This represents advances paid o comractor [or construction of a nweting room i factory.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

software license

5.0

5.1 Movement of intangible assets

Cowi:

Costasat 1 July
Additions during the year
Lot as at 30 June

Amoriization:
Adouimnulated wnortization s ot | July
Charge for the vesr 15
Acuvumulated smortizatien adat 30 June

Met book value as ar 30 June

Usaefnl 1ifie {in yuars)

2028 1024
{Hupees)

o 94, 165
565,000 54650040
563,000 565,000
ATILALS 339,545

94,165 141,250
565,006 470,835
- 94,1 63

4 4

5.2 The amorctsesivom -:hu.m.: ot the wear has been allocated o administritive expenses.

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials
Waork-in-process
Finished goods

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured

Censideresd good

Provision for expected oredit loss 7.4

7.1 The ageing of trade debis as at 30 June is as follows:

Meither past duse soF inpained
Past due 0-30 days

Past due 31-600 days

Past due 61-90 days

Past due 91-120 duvs

Past dus more than 120 days

7.2 Provision for expected eredii loss

Opening balome
Provizion for expected credil loss

330,009 355

26,7 1R.260

34,431,433 35,RIT7.605

23,490,112 23,437,154
AHT U304 EEER N
V4,371,728 52,830,502
(L0, 168,356 {6, 10:8,386)

A 203 342
J0a. 2013 341

346, 734816

ITILEE] 445 26T A49.T55
BH 596,711 7502 508
43,350,651 6633812

L602.770 4,766,383
L735.600 2,368,175
5004, 551 #1734

314,371,728 A52.R30.302

G, T A8R -
4 i3, 0 G LA ARE
|1k 168, 186 6 104,456
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25 2024
{Rupees})
ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cortisldered good
Advapce to supplicrs 1143412 257,600
Advance to staff g1 4ulh, 754 L2079
Advanee incwne tex - Net 50447513 -
Isvoormie tax refundable 1L R32 491 L RS2 49
Addvance sales tax - Met 3241940 3,102,229
156 126,150 105,412,300
8.1  Advienoges W staff represeit sdvance for biasimess reloted expenses and % interest free
DEFOSITS, ADVANCES AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
I'made deposii= RG] 223418
Advirnee against letter of credit 6,847,120 Q0518
Shorl lerm prepayments 454,965 78,097
T.858,556 REERIEIL
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Csh in hand SL8 350 INETRIEE
Foaclory imprest 155000 125, 0K
Cash ot hanks « Current accounts 4539 059 o B9 670
5013309 7,025,720

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UF SHARE CAPITAL

STH O 2024: 5TH.000) Ordinary shares

5,780, 000

1720000

T2, 50000

of R, 1= cach tully paid in cash 3, 7EDAG0
P72,000 (2024: 1720000 Ordinary shares of Ry 100
eich issved for consideration (property) other than cash 1720000
T2500000 ( 2024: 7, 250,0001 Ordmary shares
of Rs. 10V- each sssued a8 tully poid bonus shares T2 500,000
B L

HLL LI G

110 &g at vear-gngd 907,026 (2024; 907,026) ordimury shares of the Company are held by an associsted undertoking

Mg, Management & Enterpnses (Private) Limited,

11.2  There are no aprecmenis among shareholders in respeed of voting nohis, board selection, righl of ficst refusal and

Block visting.

113 Orilinary shores rank egually with regard to the Compimy's residual assets, Holders of these shares are entitled to
dividends as declared from time to tme ond are eotitled fo one vote pes shore st seneral mectings of the

Company,
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20625 D24

EmiamsamEaEmEmn [:R"Ijgeg} e ]
1I  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Crriss surpfus
Opening balance 973,553,112 S13.432, (W0
Surplus arising due b0 revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 466 430 871
Releaze on disposal of revalued assets (1,871,007 {29,643)
Transfer to un-spproprated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the current vear {7165 6ER) (4. 280 206)
Rk, 5160417 975,553,112
Deferred oy Sability
Opening balance (16,053 176) (B.590,756)
Related deferred wax Bahility of current revaluation - (8,5943,562)
Tax efficct on disposal of revalued assets 542,592 H.500
On incremental depreciation for the yvear 1 949 374 1 372 546
(13,661,210 (16,153,176
952 855207 Q59 399 936
12.1 The revaluation surplus on property. plant and equipment iz 8 capital reserve and 13 not available for distribution
tor the sharehelders of the Company in accordonce with section 241 of the Companies Act, 20017,
13 DEFERRED TAX LTABILITY - Met
Deferred tix lability avising due fo;
- accelerated tax depreciation 53231111 AT.531,948
- aurplus on revaluation of fixed assets 13661210 17966181
i, 892,511 65,498,129
Deferred fax asset arising due fo:
- provizion againgt gratuity (6.B42. 04T (6,377 (i)
= long term loan 627,402 1 020,675
- deferred grant (G27.402) {1.020,675)
- creditors, acerued and other liabilities {2580, TER) (3,979 522)
(9.422,835) (10,356,588)
(N ST 464 486 55,141,541
13.1 Movement of deferred tax liabilities
Balance as ot beginning of the vesr 55,141,541 47.176,752
Tax charge recognised in statement of profit or loss 2742216 (1.3595,500)
Tax charge recognised in other comprehensive income (414,271) 216,727
Tax charge recopnised in statement of changes in egquity - £.943 562
Balance as at end of the vear 5T 460 4R6 55,141,541
14 DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR STAFF GRATUITY
Present value of defined benefit I.Il!lEig,i.'lljl.:-l'lﬁ- 14,1 23393 206 19028 330

The acteanial valuaton of gratmty plan was carried out 88 ot 30 June 2025 by b's. SIR Consultants, Following are the
relevant disclosures;
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141

14.2

14.3

Td.d

14.5

14.6

Movement in net liability

Opening net hability

Expense for the vear

Oiher comprehensive ineome (OCT)
Benefits paid

Closing net liability

14.2
14.3

Expense for the yvear recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cosl

Met interest
14.4

Other comprehensive income (001

Actvarial remeasuremenis: actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations

Expense for the vear has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 24
Administrative expenses 25
Selling and distribution expenses 26

Principal actuarial assumplions used are as Tollows:

Valvation discount pate per anduim

Discount rate for profit and loss

Expected rate of eligible salary increase in future years per annum
Salaries increase rate per anmnum

Mormal retirement age

Dwration

Withdrawal rate

Mortality rate

Effective salary increase date

Sensitivity analysis

(Rupees) ----

1928 230
4,383,193
1,428,522
(2,146,779

2024

18,624 5249

4,333 508
(677.273)
(2,352 434)

23 503 266

19,928 330

1,602,089 1,498,157
2,781,104 2,835,351
4,383 193 4,333 508

1,428,522

(677.273)

3032643 29406 THH
H28,506 953,375
422,044 433,365

4,383,193 4,333 508

2025 2024
11.75% 14.75%
14.75% 16.23%,
12.00% 12.37%
11.75% 12.75%

& Years &l Years
5 44 Years 4,33 Years
Moderate High
SLIC 2001 -2045 SLIC 24M1-2005

01 July 2025

01 July 2024

{2025)

{224}

Particulars PYVDERO

{Rupees)

PY B
{Rupees)

Percentage
change

Percentage

change

Current hability 13,303,266

19 928,330

+1% Discount rate 22,378,578 {5.15%) 18,103,711 (4 14%)
-1% Discount rate 24945 660 5.73% 20,527 088 4.51%
+1 %% Salary increase rate 25,043,811 G 15% 20,929.077 5.02%,
1% Salary increase rste 22 2683210 {5.62%) 18,907, 138 {4.6T%)
+10%% Withdrawal rates 13,571,901 {00950 19,992 757 L32%
=108 Withdrawal rates 23614972 0095 19 E5T 312 {0.36%0)
1 Year Mortality age set back 23,504 237 (s 15,923 BOT {0.02%)

1 Year Mortality age set forwand 23, 592297 {000 (AR (02%%
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Undiscounted paymenis

nzs 2024
............... {RuUpees) =
14.7  Maturity profile
Particulars
Year 1 d, T, D00 3,204 580
Yoar 2 2,819,421 4672820
Year 3 2.595,842 20 49T
Yeur 4 1608028 3022474
Year 5 2423158 1856844
Year 610 Year 10 17,403,612 17,584,617
Year 11 and above 27,035,578 [N T
14.8 Hatios
Termination liability vs the actuarial liability
Termination liability 21,360,501 19,324,505
Actuarnial liability 23,593,266 19 928, 330
Ratio of disconti nuance 1o acnarial o565, Gy QTG
Service cost vs the actuarial Hability
Service cost 1,815,481 1,539,155
Awciuarial liability 23,593 266 19,928, 330
Ratio of service cost (o actuarial TS T.72%
Pasi service years 13.349 12.90

14.9 Risks assoclated with defined benefit plans

Longevity risk:
The risk arises when the acal lifetime of retirees 18 longer than expectation. This risk i3 measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree pu]'lul;.ﬂiim

Salary increase risk:
The most common Lype of retirement benelit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal risk:
The risk of actual withdrawals varyving with the sctusnal sssumplions can impose a sk o the benelis abligation,

The movement of the lability can go either way,

L4.100 Expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2026 15 Rs. 4,294 2549,

25 1024
{Rupces)
15 LONG TERM LOANS - Secured
Temporary econemic refinance facility 15.1 2R 076,390 34, 283 831
Long term loan 15.2 44,060,145 28568, 401
72,145,535 61 B5F 251
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152

2025 2024
—————— --= { Rupees)
Temporary economic refinance facility
Ar amortised cost
Opening balance 43,978,000 53,334,000
Repayments during the year (7,356,000 (T.356,0000)
38,622,000 45,978,000
Deferred grant 17.1 (3. 159.610) (4338, 164)
Current portion shown under current liabilities 1B (7,356,000 (7,336,000
28.076,390 34,283 831

The Company on July 21, 2020 obtained loan under the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Temporary Economic
Refinance Facility' for purchase of imported plant and machinery. The facility carries mark-up at SBP refinance
rate plus 4% per annum. The loan i 10 be repaid in (en years including grace period of two yvears in thirty two
equal quarterly installments from the date of disbursement. Tn addition do the sccurities mentioned in note 152,
the facility is secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery.

The loan iz recogmised and measured i accordance with IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments. The benefit of the
below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference betwesn the imtial carrving value of the loan
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the procesds received. The benefit is accounted for and presented as
deferred grant in accordance with [AS 20 - Government Grants (note 17,

2025 1024
Long term logm {Rupees)
Opening balance 44 893 200 61,218 000
Acguired during the year 51,758,100 -
96,651,300 G 2 1E D00
Repayiments during the year (23,928 531 (16,324 200)
T2 722 769 44 893 200
Current portion shown under current liabilities 18 (28.633,624) (16,324,800
44, 0649, [45 2H 568400

The term finance facilities have been obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited {BAH) for acquiring machineries.
The facilities carry mark-up at the rate of & months KIBOR plus 1.5% - 1.75% per annum (2024: & months
KIBOR plus 1.75% per amiwim) payvable mouthly installments. The facilities availed are re-pavable in egual
monthly instalments starting from the dme of respective disbursements. Tenure of these facilities ranges from 3
to 3 vears. Markup s pavable on a calendar quarter basis. These facilities are secured by way ol first specific
hypothecation charge over imported machinenes. Equitable mongage over Industrial property bearing no D733,
5. 1LT.E., measuring 2,42 acres, Karachi and import documents consigned to BAH,
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2025 2024
mmsmssasassanaas [ HUpEs) sesceamcaeaaa.
16 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO MUSHARAKAH FINANCING
Uimlli-rlj; balance 5,758,685 AR, M0
Repayments during the year (2, HETH, 685 (3,121.315)
2 REO, 000 5,758 6B5
Current partion shown under current habilites 18 (2,580,001 {2,880, )
- 2ETE GRS
161 It represents obligation in respect of assets acguired under musharakah srrangements from Meezan Bank Limited
(MBL) for a period of five vears at an applicable rate of [FRE base rate plus 2% which have been used az a
discounting factor. Rentals are payable in monthly installments. Repairs and insurance ¢osts are to be bome by
the Company. Owverdus payments are subject to additional charge upto 20 percent per annum. The facility iz
secured by way of first exclusive ownership of the asset in the name of MBL, personal guarantes of all directors
and pari Passu Charge amounting to Rs.13.66 million over Industrizl Land bearing Mo, DV38, measuring 2.42
Acres, SITE.
17 DEFERRED GRANT
Temporary economic refinance facility 17.1 2 163 4355 1610
17.1 Deferred grant under temporary economic refinance Facility
This represenis benefit of the below-market rate of inierest caleulated as ihe difference beiween the iniiial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received (note 15,1,
Opening balance 4. 335,169 5,644, 7H3
Amaortised during the vear (1. 148,559) (1,306,614)
15.1 3,189,610 4,338,169
Current poation of deferred government grant shown
under current liabilities 1% {1,026155) (1,148 55%)
2163455 FIEBATR
18 CURRENT PORTION SHOWDN UNDER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Temporary cconomic reflinance facility 15.1 T 356,000 T 356,000
Long term loan 152 28,653,624 16,324 KMk
Liabilities against assets subject 1o musharakah financing 16 2 BRO_ 0 2 RED OO0
38 RR9. 624 26, 560, 800
172 CURRENT PORTION OF DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT
Deferred grant under temporary ecomoinic reflinance facility 17.1 1,026,155 1,148,550
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2025 024
(Hupees)
20 SHOKRT TEEM BORROWINGS - Secured
Bank Al-Habib Limited - Running finamce 2001 449, 169 687 105,316,323
Bank Al-Habib Limited - Short Tenn Finance (STF) 202 36,572,794 31483631
B5,742 451 157,790 954

20,1 The Company obtained running finance facility from Bank Al-Habib Limited up to Bs.250 million (2024:
Rs 250 million). The runming finance facility carmies mark-up of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.75% (2024: 3 months
KIBOR plus 2%) per annum.

20,2 During the vear, the Company obthined short term finance facility from Bank Al-Habib Limited up to Rs. 50
inillion. The short term fnamee Geility carries mark-up of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.75% per anbuin prevailing oi
the date of dishursement,

20.3 The Company has other {inance {oeilities from Bank Al-Habib Limited comprising Letter of Credit (Sight-
Foreign) for R=200 mullion (2024: Rs.200 million). Letter of Credit (Uszance-Forgign). sub limit of LC-Sight, for
Rs.200 muillion (2024: R= 200 million), Aceeptance ULC - Sub limit of LC Usance for Rs. 2000 millien {2024:
Fs.200 million) and Letter of Guarantee for Rs. 20 million {2024: Rs.20 million). These facilitics carry mark-up
ag per bank's schedule of charges.

The above facilitics are secured against registered hypothecation chasge over receivables and movables stoeks,
equitable mortgage over industrial property bearing Mo, D58, SITE, karachi, import documents and a
promissory note has been issued in favour of Bank Al-Habib against shor werm running finance,

21 CREMTORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade creditors 21.1 157 863,017 87,348,212
Advanee from custoners 5.593.213 063,299
Acerued expenses and other payables 212 16,281,700 13,563,748
Payalle to provident fumsd 213 L RERILIT TT5 649
Accrued mark-up 5,280 564 RO 042
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund 214 BESQ2TO 12,436,006
Simdh Waorkers" Welfare Fund 21.5 3,559 08 5,182,779
Sales tax payable 1,677,523 1 386,033

200,078 (00 130,635,788

21,1 Trade creditors include payvable 1o an associated concern Mg, Savesd International amounting o Rs (.447
million { 2024: Rs.0, 148 mallion),

21.2  Accenued expenses include bonus payable amounting to Ba. 1940 million (2024 Ra0.746 million).

21.3 The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and debts securities have
been made 0 accondance with fhe conditions specified in section 218 of the Companics Act, 2017 and rules
specified thereunder.
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21.4 Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund

115

Balonce st the begimning of the year
Amount allocated for the year

Amponnt adjusted ! paid o the Fum] Trostees
Aot deposited with government

Sindh Workers" Welfare Fand

Balance at the beginning of the yvear
Amount allocated for the year
Amount deposited with government

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

1.1

22

Contingencies

Bank guaranices izsued on behall of the Company

Commilmenis
Commitments under letter of credits

Post dated chegues issued in favour of
Collector of Customns Collectorate, Karschi

23 SALES = Nel

Giross sales

Lesg: Sales tax

3.1

Sepment wise breakup of net sales

Pro-labels

Exercise books
Ammonia paper

Plain paper

Sensitized maching pars
Waste paper

2025

2024

------- — |Rupees) -=—---ma—aee

12436006
5,899,270
(12,436,006)

7,137,586
12,436,006
(6,782,500}

(355,086}

R.899.270 12436006
5,182,779 2,096,893
3,559, 08 5,182,779
(5,182,779 (2956 803}
3,559, 70K 5182779
= 2 034,915
132,444,377 86188502
= 4002,590)
1,926,838 R0 2,125,257,978%

(193,241 683 )

(197,976,546}

23.1 1,733,597 216 1,927 281,032
1,054, (W13 0159 1,063 0349 580
A& 32 08 835653503
5,686,361 G611,42%
13,371.131 19316635
12,500 =
4491 K55 2159, THS

1,733,597 216

1,927 28] 012
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COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares conswmed
Depreciation

Fuel and power

Other manufacturing expenses
Repairs and mainienance
Insuranee expenses

Rent, rates and Laxes

Telephone charges

Manufacturing cost

Work in process - Opening,
Work in process - Closing
Ciost of goods manufactured

Finshed goods - Opening
Finished gooads - Closing

24.1  Raw materisl consumed

Opening stock of raw material

Purchases during the year

Closing stock of raw material

Raw materials consumed

24.1
24.2
243

4.2

25

2024

e =~ [ Rupees) =oemmameeen -

1,152,307 669
L3R, 92E 008G
43515402
43,713,735
2R.9014,147
13,040,862
10, (45, G
2.277T.044
200,558
236,408

1, 260,625,723
128,093 032
43,515,462
3T A5%650
e 1 B
14,700,475
B2TOO5T
237 663
246,743
176,848

1,453,294 500

1,325, 506,3 72

35,827 603 3H. 530670
(34,431 433) (35, 827.6035)
1,396,172 2,712,074
1,434, 690,672 1,528 218,640
23,437,154 31,234,200
(23, 490,112) (23,437, 154)
[52,938) 7797047

1,434,637,714

1,536,401 5,693

2046, TIE 260
1,185, 595,504

332,162,037
1,225,181,946

1,482 317,064

{330,009, 395)

1,557,343,983

[296,718,2640)

1,152,307, 66%

1 260,625,728

24.2 Siaff salaries and benefits include R 3033 million (2024 R2.2.947 million) in respect of staff retirement

gcratuity and R8s 2.073 million (2024: Ra.1.799 million ) in respect of provident fund contribution.

24.3  Stores and spares consumed

Opening balance
Purchases during the vear

Closing balance

10,037,039
42,524,932

H340 253
45,2003, 24K

52800071

(9,046, 50%)

33,552,501

(10,037,039

43515462

43,215,462
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

StafT salaries and benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Fuel expense

Drepreciation

Legal and professional fees
Electric charges

Traveling and conveyance
Charity and donation
General expenses
Auditor's remuneration
Drirectors' fees

Insurance expense
Software and website maintenangs
Postage and telegrams
Stationery and periodicals
Advertisement expenses
Arnorization

Telephone charges

Rent, rates and taxes

251

4.2

232

253

3z

d 1L 2024
(Rupees)

36,851,817 13.30H 462
1,416,529 788,707
2,368,832 2,324,439
3,807 888 2615061
2,349 493 2592723
2,363,601 2603, 708
3,080,636 3,040,761
1, 2000, 0000 1,250,000
1,241,897 B8, 820
1,250, (M1 1, ik ik

0,000 H20,000
913,439 T01,193
268,458 372,811
539778 467 900

222 381 244 400
949,412 436,657
34,1605 141,250
208816 168,920
138,040 105 500
G, 125142 54,350,312

251 Stafl salaries and benefits include Rz 00929 millon (2024: Bs.00953 million} in respect of staff retivemnent
gratuity and Rs. 1159 million {2024 Rz 0918 million } in respect of provident fund contribution.

252 Charity and donstion

Amuman Behbood-e-Samat-c-Atfal
(ABSA School and College for Deaf)

The Citizens Foundation
Fotary Metropalitan Trust
The Kidney Centre

35121

250,000 300,000
ElILTEEY] 300,000
LS00, 0040 150,000
SM1000 S0, 000
1,20 (0 1, 250,000

2521 Domations during the vear include donation amounting to Bs,0.25 million (2024: R20.30 million) to
Anmuman Behbood-e-Samat-g-Atfal (ABSA School and College of Deal), Mrs, Muleika Saveed a
Mrector of the Company 5 the Honorary Treasurer of ABSA School and College of Denfl Except
above, none of the donations were made 4o any donee in which a director or his spouse had any

interast at any time during the year.

23.3 Awnditor's remuneration

Audit of financial statemenis R25,000 FO0 00
Review of half-yearly financial siatements W, 04H0 F00, 000
Keview report on code of corporile governance 75,000 S0000
Provident fund audit fiee 25,000 25,000
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund audit fee 25,000 25,000
1,250,040 1, B0 D00
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el

27

28

29

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits 2.1
Canage and forwarding

Vehicle running expenses

Fuel expenses

Depreciation 4.2
Sales promotion

Lhilities

Insurance CHPENSLS

Aclvertisement amd publicity

Printing and statonery

Cither expenses

2025 2024
————— wmee (ROPELS) —=memmemmemmaee

E.323,744 B R13 552
5,095 B35 5,304,330
THI.134 FT0075
2.074,331 2093 461
1,070,830 2.016,668
17032 350,753
1,644, 550 TROATA
51,587 524,103
291376 733,584
14,670 1K, 150
59,181 39454
24,506,315 21265076

261 Sialf salarics and benefits include Rs.0.422 million (2024: RBs0433 million) in respect of stafl retirement

eratuity and Rs.0.251 million (2024; Rs.00.251 million b in respect of provident fund contribution

OTHER QOPERATIMNG EXPENSES

Sindl Workers' Profin ['uﬂix.:'ii,mﬁ-un Fumd 214
Sinclh Workers' Welfare Fumd ils
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Provision for unpﬁ;md credi loss

Loss o revaluation of

OTHER INCOME

Grain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment
rher income

Exchange gain

Amaortization of deferred government grant

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term loans
Murk-up on rmusharakah ﬂn:lrll_'lrll;
Miark-up om short term borrowings
Exchange loss

Bank and other charges

B.B90.2T0
1.5350,708

4,063,900

12,436,006
5,182,719
1,474,711
&, 10, 486
1,005 864

16,522,878

26,291 Bdh

419,763 -
70,122 202 554
474 103 -
1. 148,559 1. 305,614
2112 547 1504 165
14,966 428 16,604, 552
185,241 03,254
20,700 560 15,361,271
- 6,705,687
2,599 56 ET9 18]
IR A55 185 549,853,945
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current fax
For the vear
For prior year

Deferred tix
Relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences

30.1 Heconciliation between tax expense and acconnting profit
Profit for the year

Tax on accounting profit i@ 29% (2024 @ 29%
Effect of super tax under section 440

Difference between depreciation rates
Inadimissible expenses

Tax credits

Tax effect of prior vear

Dreferred taxation

.-\t'::mg-.-: lax rafe

3.2 Assessment for the tax vear 2024 stands finalized as per section 1 20 of the Income Tax Ordinance.

25 2024
----------- (RUPees) s
41,149,343 B, 946, 972
[4.850.572) [4.5300.975)
36,298,771 76,585,999
2742216 (1,505 5000
34040 95T TS, 160 495
161 462,529 230,101,328
46,824 133 67019385
- 0,933,040
(8,389.048) 4 855716
3,062,257 (8,3 13,095)
{348 000} {3 19,000k)
(4,850,572) (4,360,973
2742217 WIT5426
J0 40987 TE 190 499
24%; g

Proceedings under section 161,205 for the tax year 2018 to 2019 are still pending wherein procesdings have

been initiated.

Pending procecdings under section 177728 of second schedule for the year 2019 has been finalized by closure

of audit by the assessing officer.

The Assessing Officer created tax demand of Rs 12.45 million for Tax Year 2023 which was contested by the
Company before the Commissioner Appeals (CIR). During the yvear, the assessment has been annulled by CIR
and remand back to the assessing officer for re-assessment afler providing opportunity of hearing to fhe
Company., The re-assessinent proceedings ape pending. The management expect o favourable decision jin this

respect,

EARNMINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

Profit alter taxation 13.1.42].542 155 510829
-------- (Number of shares) ----——
Weighted average momber of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year AR A B, (R (O
—mm e Rk - -
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted 15.30 13,49
3.1 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as al year end.
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CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before axation

Adfusentents for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation
Amortization
Prowision for gratuity

Provision for Simdh Werkers' Profit Participation Fund

Prowision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Government grant amortised
Loss on disposal of fixed asscs
Fimange cost

Exchange gain

Giain on disposal of fixed assels

Loss on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

(Tncrease) /S decrease in CHFPERT asgels
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debis
Advances and other receivables

Deposits, advances and short term prepayments

Tmerease S (decrease) in cureent labilities
Creditors, acerued and other liabilities
Cash generated from operations

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank halances
Short term bormowings - Secured

42

52

14.1
214

27

28

2025 2024
R | T E e B
161 462,529 230,100,328
50,592,479 41,991,379
B4 165 141,250
4,383,193 4,333,508
BH9G 2T 12,4346, (M
1,559,708 5,182,710
{1, 148,55%) (1,304,614
- 1,474,711
JH. 455,185 53,148,158
(474.103) &, TOS, 687
(419.763) -
- 1,095 5264
SO0, 530 (1,637,784}
(31.947.921) 45,952 398
425311474 (6,630 020)
(66 234} 22,229 3%
(7.465.556) 5,908,776
78,775,595 (110,502.312)
348,221,988 311,567,009
S613,3009 7,125,720
(85742 481 (137,794 554
(80,129,172} (130, 6T4,234)

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, MIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chiel Exscwiive | Herpeigrs Exreuilves Toisl
0% 2024 HT Hord L EE] I0ra I 24
Hupersi

Foos Al (NI RN ] SN a2 IHHI
Pelmrmigberinl remmmasenanivn sl allowiine s & TI13.708 442572 - 1,597 143 L]
Priwidesd fiindd ELE LT IEA ARIE okl
Mdeatical cxpomy RELLS ] 3RS 342 Sy
Euieee reiil 1078, 168 TATE 18R - 1.3595872
Reimbursable cipenies 02l 812 1,743 461 - - -- - 1,921 k1T

11588, 383 190,060, 5| 63 Al HH 20000 LR ELE] 590,337 [EREMRICY 16.531.243
Bdurmiszr af pasnng 1 ] ] a ) i 2

3.1  The Chief Executive and certain emplovees of the Company are provided with Company muntained cars,

34,2  The Company has bome the telephone and unlity charges of the Chiel Executive's residence,
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36

37

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise local associsted compamies, staff retivement funds, directors
and key management personnel. Transactions with related partics and associated undertakings, other than those which
have heen specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

; ] Relationship and percentage 2025 024
Piarir of e reluiedt phirty aof sharcholding Transactions during the vear {Rupees)
Slis. Saveed Intemational A dircetor of the Company s Purchases L0592, 258 2,240,067
the mamner of the busimes,

Purchase of Fixed Assets 24,72 100K -
Pakistan Paper Producis
Limited Ernplooes’
Proviident Fund Trusi Employees Fund Coniribubion TAET LT& G947 740

025 2024
—mmemmmaeaa (Numbers) —-—eeeeee—

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Mumber of employvees as at 30 June 101 111
Muinber of fwtory emplovees as at 30 Tune 79 8BS
Average number of employees during the vear 115 L1z
Average number of factory emplovees during the year 235 35

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with internal
reporting provided (o the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM), Sepment performance i3 generally evaluated based

on certain key performance indicators including business volume aml gross profir.

Segment results include items directly attributable to & segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable

basis.

37.1 The menagement has determined the operating seginents based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that e

used to make strategic and business decisions.
al Exercise books
This segment relates to the sale of exereise books,
b} Pro-labels
This segment relates to the sale of pro-labels.

c) Sensitized paper and others

This segment relates Lo sensitized paper and others.
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37.2  Segment information

Euprriey Books Freigksh CHbmrs Josel
ELTEN F= SER od EAH lwkd 2NIE a2
iMgpee) 1 Bm e Mupr) n i
Arpiwel irLevar ol (G AT R 1854 1 193w 844 LA AT Y I | 7R A1)
Cowan il wabow AT b, TR [LERAELR ] LELAE LB L1100, 53T PIAAST T [R5 b LR
i prodn ELR AT [RLESTETET FF EFRN R A8k, 281 FAR A S0k (DT TR
[ IPPRE P
Ak LA g [EEELNE N 113,487 057 (2211,873y 2T T o 125 14T
Sclbng and duarsasnn cyarecs DI IR EL] 159231 ) TR (24204 02
Fir B ' MERTTLIL T, ST PEESTRL A, 1 i b
Sorath Waskas' Pk Fanicipzice Fend (SRR Ly E 21,77 124,957 - LR (124 30w
erwlh Wity WgHare Fand [RLIERLY | 7,k sy y3 ey KT 2884 = 1,5 i |3, 183779y
Vol 40k dEy dand s M50 e TN (LTI [EETER {135 2% A1) [RESE T AR
Chpeiing prnb T o TRy T ama ) [CTIELT SR VIR T4 20 4 bk YL
CHT epoTding o prmes P o] AT 080
LM ERFEEETH (BT AET]
Frrdi bz farsine [T ORI
BT - M MSLEET 1T TR0 A
Fralil ke dunatum [FEF ] 158 BE AT

373 Segment-wise assets and liabilites are not being reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, Al non-
current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located in Pakistan,

AT4  Revenue from Unilever Pakistan Limited represents 12.05% (2024: 12.30%) of the net revenue of the Company.

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
38.1 Financial risk management
Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from
- Credit risk
- Ligquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about fhe Company's exposure to cach of the above risks, the Company's
ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Companv’'s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s tisk management framework. The Board of Directors is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company’s nsk management policies,

Thnan ('ul'rrpun_}-':" ul;ljwl'i'\.'u I 11'|;|.n;|.g_ir|g_ sk ES. hl'l,e 1.:r|.:"..,|1i.un :.1r||.| ]rﬂ_ﬂi.u:liun ur ::}laru.:}uhll.lun{ vu!qn.:. Th!: (_"1,111||1;|11:,-'x
risk management policies are established o idemify and analyvse the risk faced by the Company, 1o gel
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk nanagement policies and
syslems are reviewed regularly o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors reviews the adequacy of the nsk manogement framework i relation to the risks fced by
the Company.

63rd Annual Report 2025 67




% PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

LE -

383

Credit risk

Credit risk ig the risk that one party to a fAnancial instrument will fail ta discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur & financial loss, without taking into account the fir value of any collateral. Concentration of
credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to ba similarly affected by
changes in economics, pelitical or other conditions, Concentrations of credit risk imdicate the relative sensitivity
of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has adopied a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and limiting significant exposuare to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with
counterparties that have reazonably high extermal eredit ratings, Where an external rating is not available, the
Company wses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly Tor customers, a dedicated team
responsible for the determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the potential as well as
existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly.

Exposure to credit risk

In summary, the maximun cxposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 was as [ollows:

pd | i 2 )
Financial Financial
nssels nssels
——————e {Rupees) ——--—-—-

Long term deposits 1,989 572 1675258
Trade debis 304,203,342 346,734 816
Advances and other receivables 1,604 206 1,677,679
Deposits and advances 7373618 3144933
Cash and bank balances (excluding cash in hand) 4,539 959 A, B aTh
319,710,657 357,295,362

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks, which are ated as follows:

T e Hating Hating

agency Short term Long term
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Mational Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al AN
MMevzan Bank Litited VIS Al+ Al
Habily Bank Limited VIS A Ass

Mone of the Anancial agsets of the Company are secured,
Liguidity risk

Ligquidity rizk ig the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with itg
financial habilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. The Company’s approach 1o
managing liquidity iz to ensure, ag far ag possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.
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The Company aims to maintain the level of s cash and cash equivalents at an amount im excess of expected cash
optflows on financial liabilities by continuous momitoring of forecast amd actual cash outflows, The Company
also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash
outflows on trade and other payables.

Exposure to liguidity risk

The l'ulln:_'n.:.-'lng e fhe n.:n1;,1ir|.|ng contractual matnties of Brancial habelities b (he |'|.:|'|n:;|r|i||g date. The amaounts
are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments.

Carrying Cuniractual Sin mnnehy Sin be dwalve Ak b Mnre tham
s canh Maw s o less i I e aTE F Vs
IRpees)

Ters

Wertralerd eative Movasstal Nadiinkes

Living twrm boared - S uned 21,XTL.34% 20,302, R1% 53 RAS T4
| A355] lAsL 520 - -

1 2645 800 - - -
reditors. seorued and other hahiliss 16U, 2487550 LY LT 550 - - -
Shom tamy hamowings B, TATAR) K, 434K 1 - - -

a2l TIL ool A0, e TaT 1.9, 5 Th FLHSA, T 2T 5T Tall
e e -
Carvy g Cnnrracrial Six mannhs Sin e nwelve et 1 Ninre tham
s ekl v s s i ey Irvu vemis N § e s
{Rupscs)y
024
Newr-sdurt rbive Tevamatal Nabiidtey
Lot o Rosares = Soserivod 17,740,232 1660 1,778 W | 03 A 47,887 570

Lrahilines against psscts sobgect o mnsha ko fnscig LAk, 196 184177 -
Unciimed divide EEAC Y - - E5)
Cradiiar, sadl anl ahar Soahiliss 123, 107.4TT 133, 107477 - - -
Sheoat b hoimmedings 137 790, %] 137,709 %54 137, 7o u54

Lhd ARa, GEE Ju1 TZEEAT 202 4TT AT 1R 125074 EENETNER] EER TR

Murket risk

Maorket risk ig the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchonge rates, interest rates and egquiny
prices will affect the Company's income or the value of (18 holdings of financial instruments. The objective af
market risk management iz to manapge and control market risk exposwres within acceptlable parameters, while
optimizing the return.

3841 Currency risk

Currency risk i the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Nuetuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables
and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.

The Company 15 exposed to foreign cwrrency risk on purchases that are denominated & currency
other than Pak R1,|]:N,:L::§ (PR Ag the ('urnr_l:l.rly :irr'l]'mrl coram row material, ;.1\.1;:1rdir|5|.y i 18 ex pu:_-;l.:u:!
to currency risk, primarily with respect to trade creditors denominated in foreign currencies.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary of the gquantitative duta about the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk iz as
Forblovavs:
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38.4.2

Spot rate as at 30 June
Trade creditors

Spot rate as at 30 June
Trade creditors

Spot rate as at 30 June
Trade ereditors

Spoi rate as at 30 June
Trade creditors
Trade creditors
Sensitivity analysis

ELR
ELUR

GBP
GHP

LS
LsD

AED
AED

Rupees

2025 2024
33283 2us.4]
= 0907
IRY.GS 35185
s 679
284.10 278.80
333193 3 444
T7.90 76.37
o 83 386
94,660,214 7 876 R0

A five percent strengthening / (weakenimg) of the Rupee against foreign currency ag at 30 June 2025
would have increased / {decreased) equity and profit and loss account by Bs4.733 mullion (2024
Bs. 0394 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remaining

constant,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate becanse of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments

WRD

Fixed rate instruments
Financial ahilitiex
Long term loans

Variable rate instruments

Financial Habilities
Long term loans

Liabhilities against assets subject to musharakah financin

Short term borrowings

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

2025

024

memnmemmmnmss | HUHELS) ssmsaeacaaaa

38,622 00K 45,978,010
T2 722760 44 BUd 2

2 HEO D00 5,758,685
55,742 481 137, 7499 954

161,345,250

188,451,839

The impact of change in fair value due to a change in interest rate is not considered to be material to

these financial statements.,

Cash flows sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased /
{decreased) equity by Bs. 1,613 million {2024; Rs, 1,885 million), This analysis assumes that a1l other

variables remam constant.
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3843  Equity price risk

Price risk ig the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific fo the individual instrument or its

isguer or factors alfecting all instruments traded in the marker

The Company does not have investments in listed equity securities and ig not exposed to market price

risk.

38.5 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value 1s the amount that would be recerved to zell an asset or puid to wansfer 8 Lability in am orderly

transaction between market participants at the measursment date.

The carrving value of all the financial instruments reported in the financial statements approximates their fair

value as the items are short term in nature.

The able below analyses financial instrwment carried at T value, by valuation method. The differem levels

have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Cuoted prices (unadjusted ) in active markets foe identical assets or Labilites,

Level 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or the liability,

cither directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3= Inpuis for the asset or liability thai are nol based an observable market data (thai is, unobservable

inputs).

The: Company dowes not held any such financial mstroment mits portfolio that flls mothe above criteria,

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 20 ag to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors the return on capital along with the
level of distributions to ordinary shareholders, The manageiment seeks to imaintain a balance between higher returns that
might be passible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,

Umnit A-Jun-25 30-Jun-24
Total debt Rupes 11035, 154 HY. 413,051
Total equity Rupees 1, 750,749,255 1,661,341,9604
Total capital employed 1.f61, 784,414 1,750.754,995
Grearing ratio 6% 5%

The Company is not subject to externally wnposed capital requirements, except those related to maintenance of debr
covenants, commonly imposed by the providers of debt finance. There were no changes in the Company's approsch to

capital management during the year.
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CAFACITY AND PROTDMCTIONMN

: Capacity Production
L Hemarks
i T02E | 2074 7025 | o4 e
a} Exercise books  Groose 58,632 58,632 41,519 49,127 Due to lack of demand.
by Sensitized pagser Rulls 216,006 e 1] 2 ARS £.434 Dasee tor Lok of dermanmd.
¢} Prolabels 50 Meter A000,000 4,000,000 4,890 162 4932013 Due o extra shifts.

401 The capacity is determined on single shift basis.

DECLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES

Asg per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, shariah compliant companies and companies
listed on the Islamic Index are required to disclose the following:

025 2024
—————— [Rupees) —-me—————
Loan obtained as per Islamic mode 2 BR0.000 5,758,685
Shariah compliant bank deposits/bank balances 185 548 1,705,057
Bark up paid on lslamic mode of financing 185,241 303,254
3,250,789 7, Thb 9t

The Company mainiains bank account with M/s. Meeezan Bank Limited.
SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to year ended 30 June 2025, the Board of Directors in ite meeting held on 12 September 2025 has proposed
final cash dividend @ Rs5 per shore amounting Bs40 million for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the offect of such dividend which will be pecounted for in the finencial
staternents of the Company subseguent 1o the vear end, when it is approved by the shareholders of the Company,

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The comespomding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of compari=on and
bt pruxurl!ulion

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on 12 SEP 2025 by the Board of Directors of the
Company

GENERAL

Figures in these finnneinl stotements have been rounded ofF to nearest rupee.

v

; 75
;o "j:f/ﬂ.’ @Bl )
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ABBAS SAYEED MUHAMMAD YUSUF ABID SAYEED
Chairman Chief Financial Ojficer Chigl Excecarivg
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Pattern Of Share Holding - Form 34"
Shareholders Statistics As At June 30, 2025

MNumber OFf Share Holding Total Shares %
Share Holders From To Held
469 1 - 100 13,697 0.7
319 101 - 500 92,278 1.15
152 501 - 1000 118,376 1.458
230 1001 - 000 515,547 6,49
a6 5001 - 10000 322 436 4.03
13 10001 - 15000 157,484 1.97
5 15001 - 20000 B7,989 1.10
3 20001 - 25000 71,406 0.89
-1 25001 £ 30000 132,210 1.65
1 0001 - 35000 33,518 0.42
2 35001 - 40000 75,570 0.94
2 40001 - 45000 87,657 1.10
2 45001 50000 99,057 1.24
2 50001 - SE000 103,531 1.29
: | 55001 = a0000 56,516 0.71
1 60001 - 65000 61,000 0.76
1 65001 - FO000 66,828 0.84
b | 70001 - 5000 70,500 0.88
i | 105001 - 110000 108,000 1.35
2 110001 - 115000 225,331 2.82
2 135001 - 140000 275,200 3.44
1 245001 £ 250000 248,622 311
3 255001 - 260000 JEE.961 9.61
1 415001 - 420000 417,334 522
1 S00001 - 505000 502,161 65.28
1 515001 £20000 619,101 7.74
i | H20001 - 625000 623,557 774
. | 905001 4 S10000 907,026 11.34
1 1135001 - 1140000 1,135,107 14.19
1,270 8,000,000 100.00
Categories Of Number Of Total Shares
e T Shareholders Share Holders Held PRrceNtARe
1 Individuals 1242 5,935,915 74.20
2 Financial Institutions 2 1,867 0.02
3 loint 5tock Companies 12 1,302,560 16.28
4 Insurance Companies 1 3,000 0,04
5 Mutual Fund 4 671,230 8.39
& Other 3 85,4109 1.07
1,270 2,000,000 100.00
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Details of Pattern of Shareholdings as on June 30, 2025

| S.No. Categories Shareholders Shares Held % Age |
1 Associated Companies 907,026 11.34
Management & Enterprises (Pvt.) Limited 907,026
2 NIT & ICP 626,249 7.83
Mational Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Departrment NI{U)T Fund 619,101
Investment Corporation of Paksitan 6,816
IDBL (ICP) Unit 332
3 Directors, CEQ, their Spouses and Minor Childern 2,978,711 37.23
Mrs. Muleika Sayeed 502,161
Mr. Abbas Sayeed 623,557
Mr. Asadullah Sayeed 417,334
Mr. Abid Sayeed 1,135,107
Ms Aisha Fariel Salahuddin 2,500
Mr. Sayeed Imran 12,860
Mrs. Nadia Sayeed W/o. Abid Sayeed 36,570
Mrs. Nusser Sayeed W/o. Abbas Sayeed 248,622
4 Executives Nil
5 Individuals 2,957,194 36.96
6 Public Sector Companies and Corporation Nil
7 Banks, DFIS. NBFIS, Insurance Companies, Modarabas 530,820 6.64

Joint Stock Companies, Mutual Funds and others

Total 8,000,000 100.00

Shareholders Holding Ten Percent or More In The Company

Mr. Abid Sayeed 1,135,108 14.19
Management & Enterprises (Pvt.) Limited 907,026 11.34

63rd Annual Report 2025 74




4

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

I/ We

of

being 2 member(s) of Pakistan Paper Products Limited holder of
ordinary Shares as per Share Registrar Folio,/CDC Account Mo,
hereby appoint Mr./Miss,/Mrs. Folio,/CD'C Account No.

of

FORM OF PROXY

who is also a member of the Company as my / our proxy to attend, speak & vote for me / us

and on my J ocur behalf at the at the 63-4ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on Thursday,
October 09, 2025 at 10:30 am and at any adjournmment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025,
F=35/=
Fevenue
Stamp
[Sipnature should agree with
the specimen signature registered
with the Company)
Signature
Wimesses:
1: Signature
Name:
Address:
CHNIC or
Passport No.
2: Signature
Name:
Address:
CHNIC or
Passport No.
Important
1. This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed, must be submitted at the Company's Registered Office not

2.

later than 48 hours.

For CDC Account Holder / Corporate Entities:
In addition of the abowve following requirements have to be met;

i] The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CMIC Numbers shall be
mentdoned on the form.
ii} Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the

proxy form.
iii} The proxy shall produce his/ her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting,
iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen

v] signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier] along with proxy form to the
Company.
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PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Wy jamapunji.pk

Key features:

&2 Licensed Entities Verification

& Scam meter”

M Jamapunji games®

B Tax credit calculator”

& Company Verification

[E Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

N Jdrrs T s lrvosasbon
B ton WAt of
Soournilos and
Commession of Paidstan

G

FY Jama
= PUN ji

AL gl tora B e

Be aware, Be alert,
Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

b

Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

H Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
Financial calculator

Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

Jamapunji applicalion for
mabile device

1 Online Quizzes

n DFDE

) L] o
jamagunji.pk jamapunji_pk

"Miabis Bans am Alsa Avalabin for downicad Sor pndrokl and los davices
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Promoting Education,
Development, &

Quality Products.

PR6-‘ LABELS

SR |f‘[ "‘
EURENL VERITLZ |g ,—.,r.;
ganikinsfan e

2

e

¥ Pro Labels - Self Adhesive labels in roll form.

» Exercise Books

» Plotter Paper

» Ammonia Sensitised Paper

Head Office & Factory:

Pakistan Paper Products Lid.,

B/58, S.1.T.E. Estate Avenve, Korachi-75700



